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COMPANY PROFILE
Atilitply

China Financial Leasing Group Limited (Stock Code: 2312,
“CFLG” or the “Company”, with its subsidiaries, collectively
the “Group”) is an investment company. Incorporated in the
Cayman Islands, the Company’s shares have been listed
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) since October 2002.

CFLG strives to create value for its shareholders, leveraging on
favourable market conditions. With strong government industry
support, unique investment approach, and in-depth knowledge
of the investment market, CFLG would remain highly adaptive
to market conditions and would continue to look out for
opportunities in potential sectors.

China Financial Leasing Group Limited Annual Report 2016
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DIRECTORS’ STATEMENT
HE

Dear Shareholders,

The Board (the “Board”) of Directors (the “Directors”) are
pleased to present you with the 2016 Annual Report of China
Financial Leasing Group Limited (the “Company”), with its
subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for the year ended 31
December 2016.

During 2016, the Group’s business was mainly investments
in Hong Kong listed securities continuously. The main indexes
almost flat at the end of 2016 where they started after a
volatile twelve months, punctuated by the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC”) Gross Domestic Product (“GDP”) growth
continues to decline and the PRC’s forex reserves drop as
outflow accelerates. The vote of the United Kingdom (the
“U.K.”) to leave the European Union and Donald Trump’s win in
the United States of America (the “United States”) presidential
election.

The losses generated from the first half of 2016 was almost the
same as the Group’s portfolio investment losses in overall year.
The Group’s portfolio can also do better performance in the
second half of 2016, after the market digested the uncertainty
events, the cash flow was going back to capital market and got
the support.

PRC ECONOMY

In 2016, the PRC’s economic stabilization, fueled by
accommodative fiscal and monetary policy. Finally, the PRC’s
economy grew by 6.7% for the full year. That was in line with
estimates from the head of the PRC’s state planning agency.
The growth momentum in the PRC had actually improved a
little bit in the second half of the year, led by the improvement
in the industrial sectors and also the financial market recovery
in year-on-year growth terms.

However, the Renminbi (“RMB”) continues the downtrend
since the middle of 2015. The PRC reported that its foreign
exchange reserves fell for a sixth straight month in December
2016, declining by United States dollar (‘USD”) 41 billion for
the month, to USD 3.011 trillion, the lowest since early 2011.
The PRC would shore the capital controls in an effort to stem
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China Financial Leasing Group Limited

DIRECTORS’ STATEMENT
HE

outflows. We believe the PRC governor pursue a coordinated
package of tax cuts and faster reforms of state-owned
enterprises to offer the private sector more opportunities.

UNITED STATES AND EUROPEAN
ECONOMY

In the United States, keeping on the right track of economic
recovery and uptrend in the stock market, that is because the
citing higher home prices, low unemployment and improving
confidence in the economy. Therefore, the Federal Reserve
followed their original plan to raise interest rates by 25 basis
points to 0.75% in December 2016. It also projects there are
three additional rate hikes in 2017 depending on the progress
of economic recovery. The United States stock market rally
and Dow hit record highs in the closing weeks of 2016 with the
20,000 level.

In contrast, the unexpected Brexit in June 2016, a major
financial event took place. The U.K. voted to leave the
European Union in a shocking referendum, causing mass
confusion about the future of Eurozone trade, the value of the
British Pound and Britain’s financial institutions. Furthermore,
the upcoming French presidential election and German
presidential election in 2017 causing the cash flow continues
to outflows and weaken in currency. Euro and British Pound
accelerate to depreciate against to the USD due to worry on
the fate of European countries and the U.K..

PROSPECT

After both circumstances, the U.K.’s vote to leave the
European Union and Donald Trump was elected as the next
president of the United States, the fear of globalization and
suspicion of government institutions and elites powered those
black swan events happened. In the coming future, we believe
the economic nationalism and trade protectionism extend
among countries in European Union and Asia Pacific.

Annual Report 2016
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DIRECTORS’ STATEMENT
H

After the Donald Trump inauguration president in the end
of January 2017, he began recasting the role of the United
States in the global economy. He withdraw the Trans-Pacific
Partnership (“TPP”) trade and warned overseas car companies
he would impose a border tax of 35% on vehicles imported
to the United States market. He specifically blamed the PRC
as being a “currency manipulator.” Those recent policy would
make a big impact on Euro and the PRC capital market
reaction. We expect that the global currency and stock market
will be more volatile and uncertainty.

After the launch of the Shenzhen-Hong Kong Stock Connect
in December 2016, Hong Kong offered a new opportunity
for foreign firms to access to the Chinese capital markets,
especially the recent United States protection policy and the
capital controls in the PRC. Although the upcoming Hong
Kong Chief Executive election, Hong Kong’s major economic
direction is the same. The stock market would pick up pace
and volume over time and let both foreign investors to invest
in Chinese markets and investors in the PRC access to the
foreign markets. As long as we are able to grasp the right
timing to make the right investment decision, we would make
satisfactory performance from the capital market.

Last but not least, on behalf of the Board, allow me to extend
my sincere gratitude to our shareholders for your continuing
support. Appreciation also goes to the management team and
all staff of the Group for their dedications and contributions in
the past year.

Jim Ka Shun
Executive Director
Hong Kong, 28 March 2017
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_ China Financial Leasing Group Limited

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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BUSINESS REVIEW

During the year ended 31 December 2016, China Financial
Leasing Group Limited (the “Company”), with its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group”) was mainly engaged in investments in
Hong Kong listed securities for the purpose of short to medium
term capital appreciation.

In the stock market with uncertainty financial events happened,
the Group managed to strive gain in portfolio both in realised
and unrealised aspects. It is difficult to against the weakness
of Hong Kong stock market in the first half of 2016, so the
maximum drawdown was generated before third quarter of
2016. Afterward, the Group’s portfolio performed better in
the second half of 2016 due to the in-time strengthening of
capital by way of share placement which took place in May and
October in 2016. Finally, the losses in the first half of 2016 was
almost the same as the Group’s portfolio investment losses in
overall year. The Group’s portfolio recorded investment losses
(net of realised losses and unrealised gain) for overall year.
Based on the above and the operating expenses incurred
during the year, the Group recorded losses for the year.

OUTLOOK

The influence of global and the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC”) economy and stock markets on Hong Kong’s capital
market continue to grow. It is believed that the economy in
the United States of America is on the right path for recovery
and there are additional three times interest rate hike in 2017.
However, other countries’ economy, especially the United
Kingdom, European Union and the PRC may not be able to
hold the pace.

Although the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”)
has the confidence that it can overcome all these difficulties,
the global GDP growth continues slower compared with
previous years and economic nationalism and trade
protectionism among countries make unexpected government
policies and financial events outcome. We believe the Hong
Kong stock market in 2017 has a lot of challenges, at the
same time it would have potential investment opportunities.
The Board will closely monitor the capital market to get better
performance.

Annual Report 2016
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

As at 31 December 2016, the carrying value of the Group’s
listed equity investments was approximately HK$66,244,000
(2015: HK$33,725,000).

The Group recorded sales proceeds from disposals of trading
equity securities of approximately HK$53,427,000 (2015:
HK$100,467,000) for the year ended 31 December 2016 and
recorded realised losses of approximately HK$16,182,000
(2015: HK$3,312,000) and unrealised gain of approximately
HK$929,000 (2015: losses of HK$13,904,000). Loss
for the year was approximately HK$37,656,000 (2015:
HK$34,148,000) which was mainly attributable to the operating
expenses and equity investments losses (net of unrealised gain
and realised losses).

EQUITY INVESTMENTS

Listed below are the particulars of the Group’s major listed and
unlisted equity investments as at 31 December 2016:
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received Percentage of
for the investments
Percentage Market  year ended attributable to
Number of of interest Market value/ 31 December Dividend  the Group’s
Name of investees Principal activities shares held Cost prices fair value 2016 cover net assets
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(HKS'000) (HKS) (HK$'000) (HKS)
(FAT) (B7) (F&7L) (A7)
Listed equity securities
ERRAES
China Internet Investment Finance  Investment in equity securities and 18,480,000 4.06% 7,356 0.345 6,376 - N/A 9.04%
Holdings Limited (810) debt securities TR
PHERERECREE RERRARSREBES
BRAT B0
KSL Holdings Limited (8170) Provision of engineering 4,548,000 1.11% 13,740 2.99 13,699 a N/A 19.28%
consulting, contracting and TR

project management services

in Hong Kong with a focus on

geotechnical engineering works
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Dividend
received Percentage of
for the investments
Percentage Market  year ended attributable to
Number of of interest Market value/ 31 December Dividend  the Group’s
Name of investees Principal activities shares held Cost prices fair value 2016 cover net assets
Bz
ZE-RE
t=h
=t-AL EfERER
fiisgs FEWR FEEZ
FRELAER TEEY RG%E ARl RE wE TE/ATE ZRE RELE  RERAL
(HK$'000) (HKS) (HK$'000) (HKS)
(FAT) (#7) (F&7) (#7)
Newtree Group Holdings Manufacture and trading of 10,638,000  Less than 1% 1,754 0.475 5,063 - N/A 7.16%
Limited (1323) hygienic disposables; trading DR T
RINEEZEREBRAF1323) of coals; sales of household 1%
consumables, jewelries and
watches; digital technology
applications development,
and provision of educational
technology solutions
HEREE-RUEERR
EERRER HEFEHE
o RERER BERIER
% RREHBERIEANR
Long Success International Trading of wine, alcohol and 13,450,000  Less than 1% 8,105 - - - N/A -
(Holdings) Limited trading of timber SR T
(“Long Success’) (8017) BRERESRANE S 1%
(Note 1)
ARER (BR)FRAF
(&) B017) (H5E1)
Grand Peace Group Holdings Provision of funeral services, 6,918,000 1.5% 15,282 2.52 17,433 - N/A 24.72%
Limited (8108) sales of funeral related products TER
BEEERRERAR G109 and loan financing business
RERERY HERBREER
RERREEH
Zheng Li Holdings Limited (8283)  Offer passenger car services 1,225,000  Less than 1% 6,662 5.25 6,431 - N/A 9.12%
EERBRAR(283) including maintenance DR TR
and repair services; and 1%
modification, tuning and
grooming services, also sel
passenger car spare parts and
accessories in Singapore and
export to other countries
RERAERE LRRERE
B Rk AHRERR
B MENMRHEERAETH
{ERE 01 2 A ZEMEIR
King Force Group Holdings Provision of security guarding 80,000,000 1.12% 10,627 0.044 3,520 - N/A 4.99%
Limited (8315) services in Hong Kong, and T

BEEEERERAFEB315

also engaged in mobile game
business
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Dividend
received Percentage of
for the investments
Percentage Market  year ended attributable to
Number of of interest Market value/ 31 December Dividend  the Group’s
Name of investees Principal activities shares held Cost prices fair value 2016 cover net assets
Bz
ZE-RE
t=h
=t-ALk EfERER
s B3 FEEZ
FRELAER TEEY RG%E ARl RAE T TE/ATE ZRE RELE  RERAL
(HK$'000) (HKS) (HK$'000) (HKS)
(FAT) (1) (F&7) (#7)
REXLot Holdings Limited (555) Lottery system and games 114,950,000 1.15% 17,015 0.115 13,219 - N/A 18.74%
HRAVERERAT (555) development business and TiEA
distribution and marketing of
lottery products in PRC
RABER SV RZGEER
REEBRYREMLRA
TEREEEH
Yat Sing Holdings Limited (3708)  Provide building maintenance and 165,000  Less than 1% 440 3.96 613 - N/A~ Less than 1%
B ZiRE R AR (3708) renovation service DR T DR
in Hong Kong 1% 1%
REFTEEFLERE RBHRSG
Unlisted equity securities
FETRARS
Grand Leader Limited Operation of a coffee house 30 30% 1,151 N/A 518 - N/A~ Less than 1%
(‘Grand Leader’) (Note 2) BE-FMYE T T DR
REERAR ([R%]) (Wit2) 1%
Note 1:0On 19 October 2016, 9:00am, the listing of the shares of Long  Mi&f1 : B & MW2016FE10 8198 £ F 9K W HUH +
Success were cancelled. 7 o
Note 2: During the year, the loss of approximately HK$633,000 arising from  HiF2 @ FR REAEZZRER QA FELE MEE

changes in fair value of the investment in Grand Leader was recognised

in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the investment

valuation reserve.

T RFFR

7 &5 18 # A633,00058 7T - WA HAh 2 UL
mRPERALERESEHER Rt

TEEREEREBRAR



China Financial Leasing Group Limited
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LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
FUNDING

As at 31 December 2016, the Group maintained cash and
cash equivalents of approximately HK$751,000 (2015:
HK$6,441,000) which were mainly denominated in Hong Kong
dollars. The Group will monitor the exposure and take prudent
measures when necessary.

The gearing ratio of the Group as at 31 December 2016 was
Nil (2015: Nil).

The Group had net assets of approximately HK$70,525,000
(2015: HK$39,986,000) and there were no borrowings or long
term liabilities as at 31 December 2016 (2015: Nil).

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

As at 31 December 2016, the Company’s total number of
issued shares was 741,949,882 of HK$0.02 each. On 12 May
2016, the Company entered into a placing agreement with
Kingston Securities Limited (“Kingston”) as placing agent where
Kingston agreed to place, on a best effort basis, a maximum of
50,000,000 new shares of the Company (“Placing Share I”) of
HK$0.02 each at HK$0.58 per Placing Share | to not less than
six placees who were independent third parties. The placing
transaction was completed on 24 May 2016 and a total of
50,000,000 shares were issued. The gross and net proceeds
were approximately HK$29,000,000 and HK$28,120,000
respectively. The net placing price was approximately HK$0.56.

Annual Report 2016
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On 12 October 2016, the Company entered into a placing
agreement with Supreme China Securities Limited (“Supreme”)
as placing agent where Supreme agreed to place, on a best
effort basis, a maximum of 120,000,000 new shares of the
Company (“Placing Share 1I") of HK$0.02 each at HK$0.29
per Placing Share Il to not less than six placees who were
independent third parties. The placing transaction was
completed on 27 October 2016 and a total of 120,000,000
shares were issued. The gross and net proceeds were
approximately HK$34,800,000 and HK$33,875,000
respectively. The net placing price was approximately HK$0.28.

The intended and actual use of proceeds from the share
placement was for general working capital for the Group and
potential investments to be identified.

On 12 July 2016, a total of 34,300,000 share options (the
“Options”) were granted to eligible participants of the Group.
The exercise price of the Options was HK$0.4 each. The
exercise period of the Options was from 12 July 2016 to 11
July 2019. No vesting period or vesting condition was imposed
on the abovementioned Options. No share options were
exercised or lapsed during the year.

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL
OF SUBSIDIARIES

On 17 March 2016, the Group acquired 100% of the
issued share capital of Colour Charm Holdings Limited
(“Colour Charm”) at a cash consideration of approximately
HK$2,900,000. Colour Charm did not generate any revenue
since its date of incorporation on 2 January 2015. The
acquisition of Colour Charm did not constitute a business
combination. The acquisition is for the purpose of acquiring a
motor vehicle for daily operation.

Except for abovementioned, the Group has not made any

material acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries during the year
under review.
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EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had 11 employees. Total
employee benefits expenses (excluding Directors’ emoluments)
and Directors’ emoluments for the year ended 31 December
2016 were approximately HK$9,342,000 and HK$3,233,000
respectively . The remuneration policy of the Group is reviewed
annually and employees are remunerated based on their
performance, experience and the prevailing market practice.
No Director or executive is involved in dealing with his own
remuneration.

In addition to salary payments, the Group has participated in
the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“MPF Scheme”) in
Hong Kong. The MPF Scheme is registered with the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Authority under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance. The assets of the MPF
Scheme are held separately from those of the Group in funds
under the control of an independent trustee. Pursuant to the
rules of the MPF Scheme, the Group and its employees are
each required to make contributions to the MPF Scheme at 5%
of each employee’s monthly relevant income.

The Company maintains a share option scheme, pursuant
to which share options are granted to selected directors,
employees or other eligible participants of the Group, with a
view to attract and retain quality personnel and to provide them
with incentive to contribute to the business and operation of
the Group. During the year, a total of 34,300,000 share options
were granted to directors, employees or eligible participants
of the Group under the Company’s share option scheme. No
share options were exercised or lapsed during the year. For
details, please refer to the note 23 to the consolidated financial
statement under the section headed “Share-based Payments”.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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CHARGES ON GROUP’S ASSETS

During the year, there were no charges on the Group’s assets
(2015: Nil).

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

The Group recognises the importance of compliance with
regulatory requirements and the risk of non-compliance with
such requirements may affect the substantiality of the business.
The Group has allocated various resources to ensure ongoing
compliance with rules and regulations.

During the year under review, the Group has in material
compliance with the relevant laws and regulations in Hong
Kong.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES
The Group is principally engaged in short to medium term
capital appreciation by investing in a diversified portfolio of
investments in listed securities in Hong Kong, which are
exposed to certain market risks including price risk, credit
risk, liquidity risk and interest rate risk. The details are set out
in note 6 to the consolidated financial statements under the
section headed “Financial Risk Management”.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

During the year, the investments of the Group were mainly
denominated in Hong Kong dollars. Therefore, there was no
material foreign exchange exposure to the Group.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

During the year, there were no contingent liabilities noted by the
Directors (2015: Nil).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS
As at 31 December 2016, the Group did not have any
significant investments.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Directors did not recommend the payment of a final
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2016 (2015: Nil).

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF
LISTED SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during
the year ended 31 December 2016.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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China Financial Leasing Group Limited (the “Company”),
with its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) is committed
to maintaining good corporate governance standards and
procedures to ensure the integrity, transparency and quality of
disclosure, thereby enhancing shareholder value.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

The Company has adopted the code provisions of The
Corporate Governance Code And Corporate Governance
Report (the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
as its own code of corporate governance practices. During
the year ended 31 December 2016, the Company was in
compliance with the code provisions set out in the CG Code
except for the deviation from code provision A.4.1.

Code provision A.4.1 of the CG Code provides that non-
executive directors should be appointed for a specific term and
subject to re-election. The independent non-executive directors
are not appointed for a specific term but they are subject to
retirement by rotation at least once in every three years in
accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company
(the “Articles”).

Save as aforesaid and in the opinion of the directors (the
“Directors”), the Company was in compliance with the code
provisions set out in the CG Code during the year ended 31
December 2016.
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DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the required standards of dealings
regarding securities transactions by Directors as set out in the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the
Listing Rules.

All the Directors have confirmed that they have complied
with the required standards as set out in the Model Code
throughout the year ended 31 December 2016.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board (the “Board”) of Directors is responsible for the
leadership and control of the Company and oversees the
Group’s businesses, investment and strategic decisions and
performance. The Board delegated authority and responsibility
for day-to-day portfolio management of the Group to the
investment manager, while reserving certain key matters for
the approval by the Board. In addition, the Board has also
delegated various responsibilities to the Board committees.

Further details of these committees are set out in this report.
The Board currently consists of five Directors including one
executive Director, and four independent non-executive
Directors:

Executive Director
Mr. Jim Ka Shun

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Gan Wei Ping

Mr. Yip Ming

Mr. Lau Siu Hang

Mr. Tsang Chung Sing Edward
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The Board members have no financial, business, family or other
material/relevant relationships with each other. Such balanced
Board composition is formed to ensure strong independence
exists across the Board and has met the recommended
practice under the CG Code for the Board to have at least one-
third of its members comprising independent non-executive
Directors. The biographical information of the Directors are
set out under the section headed “Biographical Details of
Directors” on pages 36 to 40 of this report.

CHAIRMAN AND GENERAL MANAGER
The office of the chairman of the Board is currently vacant that
the roles and duties of which are assumed by the Board. The
general manager is responsible for day-to-day management
of business. Therefore, a clear division of responsibilities is in
place and a balance of power and authority is ensured.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
The four independent non-executive Directors are persons of
high caliber, with academic and professional qualifications, and
extensive experience in several fields including accounting,
financial, legal, corporate finance, etc. With their extensive
experience, they provide strong support towards the effective
discharge of the duties and responsibilities of the Board.

All independent non-executive Directors have given their
annual confirmation of independence to the Company, and the
Company considered that they are independent under Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules.

All independent non-executive Directors are not appointed for

a specific term, but they are subject to retirement by rotation in
accordance with the Articles.
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BOARD MEETINGS

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Board has
held 18 meetings. All Directors are given an opportunity to
include any matters in the agenda for all Board meetings and
are given sufficient time to review documents and information
relating to matters to be discussed during the Board meetings
in advance. For all regular Board meetings, the Board reviewed
the operation and financial performance, and reviewed and
approved the annual and interim results. And in order to ensure
all Directors could plan in advance their availability, a notice of
at least 14 days is given for regular meeting.

Details of the attendance of the board of Directors’ meetings
are as follows:

Name of Directors

EEgER

BHE-_E—RE+-_A=+—BIFE"
EEECRTIBRALHR -2BEETHAR
gNMEES e eRAEREHESTE
INERTRMER WELENBERES
EERLAWEEIEBAXHRER] R
EEe s THEEe RN ES R
CERVBRE YR REFERS
HEE BBEREBESTELREN
FHEER REASRESTHURER
DI14RBAN -

EXEEER2HREHABOT

Attendance/Number of meetings

EEHE HERE 8RR
Executive Directors HITEE
Mr. John Yen Jong Ling? B R AR Pt A2 2/2
Mr. Jim Ka Shun' ERFLE 18/18
Independent Non-Executive Directors BIHHTEF
Mr. Gan Wei Ping HEYEE 18/18
Mr. Yip Ming BHRELE 18/18
Mr. Kwan Sai Lok Edwin? 2t 4 5 A8 8/9
Mr. Lam Yuk Kwan?® MEBR TS 8/9
Mr. Lau Siu Hang 2 DESE 18/18
Mr. Tsang Chung Sing Edward BIRERAE 17/18
Mr. Yun Kwok Wing Edwin® BR B &8 5T A8 7/9
1. Mr. Jim Ka Shun was appointed on 1 January 2016. . EREAER_TE—AF—A—AEZ(E-
2. Mr. John Yen Jong Ling resigned on 31 January 2016. 2. BRREER-ZZT—R"EF—HA=1T—H#
£
3. Mr. Kwan Sai Lok Edwin, Mr. Lam Yuk Kwan and Mr. Yun Kwok Wing 3. A EE MEBEERBRBEKEERS

Edwin retired on 25 May 2016.
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Board minutes are kept by the Company Secretary and are
open for inspection by the Directors. Every Board member is
entitled to have access to Board papers and related materials
and has unrestricted access to the advice and services of
the Company Secretary, and has the right to seek external
professional advice if so required.

Appropriate insurance cover has been arranged in respect of
relevant actions against its Directors.

DIRECTORS’ INDUCTION AND CONTINUOUS
PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

Each newly appointed Director would receive an induction
covering the Group’s business operations, policies and
procedures and the statutory and regulatory obligations of a
director of a listed company. The Group also provides briefings
and other training to develop and refresh the Directors’
knowledge and skills. The Company continuously updates
Directors on the latest developments regarding the Listing
Rules and other applicable regulatory requirements, to ensure
compliance and enhance their awareness of good corporate
governance practices. Circulars or guidance notes are issued
to Directors and senior management where appropriate, to
ensure awareness of best corporate governance practices.
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According to the records provided by the Directors, during MREBEEFRMEZLHE R —RF— H

the period from 1 January 2016 to 31 December 2016, the —HZZ=ZT— X F+=A=+—HHF

Directors participated in the following trainings: EE228ET3EI:

Name of Directors Type of trainings

EEnA EHIER

Executive Directors HITEE

Mr. John Yen Jong Ling? B R kA2 -

Mr. Jim Ka Shun' ERERL A

Independent Non-Executive Directors BB TEF

Mr. Gan Wei Ping HEFEE B

Mr. Yip Ming HEHREE A

Mr. Kwan Sai Lok Edwin? Bt 2 5 A8 -

Mr. Lam Yuk Kwan?® MEFE A -

Mr. Lau Siu Hang 2Bkt A

Mr. Tsang Chung Sing Edward MEFLE A

Mr. Yun Kwok Wing Edwin? BR B &8 5T A8 A

A: attending seminars and/or conferences and/or forums relating to A HiER /i?éf FEBEZHTER HEHER
directors’ duties -t

B: reading newspaper, journals and updates relating to the economy, B FIB B AT — RSN EFREZ
general business or directors’ duties etc. B-FIYREFEK

1. Mr. Jim Ka Shun was appointed on 1 January 2016. 1. ERZAER_T—A"F-A—AEZE-

2. Mr. John Yen Jong Ling resigned on 31 January 2016. 2. BPREER T —R"F—A=1T—H#

Fo

3. Mr. Kwan Sai Lok Edwin, Mr. Lam Yuk Kwan and Mr. Yun Kwok Wing 3. AL E MEBEERBRBEKEERZ

Edwin retired on 25 May 2016. T-RNERA-+HABEHE-

China Financial Leasing Group Limited
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NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

The Nomination Committee was established on 21 December
2011 with written terms of reference in compliance with the
Listing Rules, and currently consists of three independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Yip Ming (Chairperson of the
Nomination Committee), Mr. Tsang Chung Sing Edward and Mr.
Lau Siu Hang.

The Nomination Committee is mainly responsible for reviewing
the structure, size and composition of the Board, identifying
qualified individuals to become members of the Board,
assessing the independence of the independent non-executive
Directors and making recommendations to the Board on the
appointment or re-appointment of Directors. Moreover, the
committee will ensure that the Board has the appropriate
balance of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives
necessary to enhance the effectiveness of the Board and to
maintain high standards of corporate governance.

Board nomination and appointments will continue to be made
on merit basis based on its business needs from time to
time while taking into account diversity. Selection of Board
candidates shall be based on a range of diversity perspectives
with reference to the Group’s business model and specific
needs, including but not limited to gender, race, language,
cultural background, educational background, industry
experience and professional experience.
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During the year, the Nomination Committee held 1 meeting.
Details of the attendance of the Nomination Committee
meeting are as follows:

Name of Nomination Committee members

o
i
H
il
ifs3
B8

TTIREHF REZ
RRRMIHEABOT

Attendance/Number of meetings

REZEEHNERE HEREEERE

Mr. Kwan Sai Lok Edwin' Rt gL A -

Mr. Tsang Chung Sing Edward BINESLE 1/1

Mr. Yun Kwok Wing Edwin’ BR BH &8 SE A -

Mr. Yip Ming? B AR A2 1/1

Mr. Lau Siu Hang 2Bk E 1/1

1. Mr. Kwan Sai Lok Edwin and Mr. Yun Kwok Wing Edwin retired on 25 1. S ERBREREER T —R"FH
May 2016. AZ+HBEE-

2. Mr. Yip Ming was appointed as the Chairperson of Nomination 2. ERHEER T "FRA=T+—"HEZ
Committee on 31 May 2016. ERIEZEZEEER-

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS EEME

The Company established the Remuneration Committee on 28
June 2005 with written terms of reference in compliance with
the Listing Rules, and currently consists three independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Lau Siu Hang (Chairperson
of the Remuneration Committee), Mr. Tsang Chung Sing
Edward and Mr. Yip Ming. The Remuneration Committee
is mainly responsible for the determination of the specific
remuneration packages of all Directors and senior management
(including benefits in kind, pension rights and compensation
payments), making recommendations to the Board on the
matters relating to the Company’s policy and structure for the
remuneration of the Directors and senior management, and on
the establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for
developing policy on such remuneration.
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During the year, the Remuneration Committee held 2 meetings. F R - ¥BZ 8 & LR 17 72/7\;.\.:% B
Details of the attendance of the Remuneration Committee ZEEE& BEBET
meeting are as follows:

Name of Remuneration Committee members Attendance/Number of meetings

FMEEENERA HERE EERE

Mr. John Yen Jong Ling' B RS A -

Mr. Kwan Sai Lok Edwin? B8 Tt 4 o A2 0/1

Mr. Lau Siu Hang 2 DESLE 2/2

Mr. Tsang Chung Sing Edward BDINE KA 2/2

Mr. Yun Kwok Wing Edwin? R B &8 5 A2 0/1

Mr. Yip Ming?® HEPH S 40 1/1

1. Mr. John Yen Jong Ling resigned on 31 January 2016. 1. BRREENR-ZZT—"EF—HA=1T—H#

£

2. Mr. Kwan Sai Lok Edwin and Mr. Yun Kwok Wing Edwin retired on 25 2. At EERRBEKREENR T —RFhH
May 20186. AZ+HHBEE:

3. Mr. Yip Ming was appointed as a member of Remuneration Committee 3. HREER-_ZT-"FEA=T—HEZ
on 31 May 2016. EETMEEEKE -

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION Jl@‘ijlﬁ'rﬁﬁjﬂﬁ

The Audit Committee is mainly responsible for making & Zs5exTEZaa g/ EZEMY E

recommendations to the Board on the appointment, F EELEBOEETSREAEESRLR
reappointment and removal of the external auditor and to  #t & B2 (F 9N BE 4% EET 2~ 57 BW & BE (T 83K -
approve the remuneration and terms of engagement of the [AREEZEZYMETE B 2 (LA
external auditor, and any questions of resignation or dismissal 28 EZEAEBR P HI R FEE RS A NE
of such auditor; reviewing the interim and annual reports and B : REBARERE 7 B8 RE Z 5 % A2
accounts of the Group; and overseeing the Group’s financial ﬁ*% BFE-ROBEEE- E’H/fﬁ%m
reporting system and internal control procedures. During A RIZEMTHEEE (FE)STMER
the year under review, the remuneration paid/payable to the Frr i< &% a0 T :

Company’s auditor, RSM Hong Kong, is set out below:

Fee paid/payable

B ENEA

HK$’000

FET

Audit services Z B AR % 310
Non-audit services IEZ B AR TS 57

—EAEER hES ARG ERERAT
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was established on 7 October 2002. The
Audit Committee currently consists of three independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Tsang Chung Sing Edward
(Chairperson of the Audit Committee), Mr. Yip Ming and Mr. Lau
Siu Hang.

The terms of reference adopted by the Audit Committee are
aligned with the code provisions set out in the CG Code.

The Audit Committee shall meet the external auditor to discuss
any area of concern during the audit or review. The Audit
Committee reviews the interim and annual reports before
submission to the Board. The Audit Committee focuses not
only on the impact of standards, but also on the Listing Rules
and the legal requirements in the review of the Group’s interim
and annual reports.

During the year, the Audit Committee held 3 meetings and
has reviewed the unaudited interim results and audited annual
results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2016
together with the auditor of the Group. In the opinion of the
Audit Committee, the preparation of such results complied with
the applicable accounting standards and the Listing Rules.

Major work completed by the Audit Committee during the
year includes:

° reviewed the Group’s annual report, interim financial
information and annual financial statements;

° reviewed significant accounting and audit issues;

° reviewed the external auditor’s qualifications,
independence and performance;
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1> EER RS

° assisted the Board to evaluate on the effectiveness
of financial reporting procedures and internal control
system;

° advised on material event or drawing the attention of

the management on related risks; and

° reviewed the adequacy and effectiveness of the
Group’s systems of risk management and internal
control.

Details of the attendance of the Audit Committee meeting are
as follows :

Name of Audit Committee members

. HBEEEFGHMBHBTENA
MEERGN AR

. Fﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁﬁhtwﬁi?ﬁl% B g
**/EEﬁFﬁﬂ N\,

EMAEERREENABEIZER
FHA BN AR -

ZHEFBWT

BEZLZEEgR

Attendance/Number of meetings

EREESHERSR FERE 8B RE
Mr. Tsang Chung Sing Edward TBINELE 3/3
Mr. Lam Yuk Kwan' MEE LA 2/2
Mr. Yip Ming EHRHEE 3/3
Mr. Lau Siu Hang? 2| B 5k A2 1/1
1. Mr. Lam Yuk Kwan retired on 25 May 2016. 1. MEBEAERZZE—A"FRAZTHAH
Fo
2. Mr. Lau Siu Hang was appointed as a member of Audit Committee on 2. Lo EEAER-_ZT—RNFRA=T—HE
31 May 2016. ZAREREZEEHKE -

COMPANY SECRETARY

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Company
Secretary has duly complied with the relevant professional
training requirement under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

VOTING BY POLL

Pursuant to Rule 13.39(4) of the Listing Rules, any vote of
shareholders at a general meeting must be taken by poll except
where the chairman, in good faith, decides to allow a resolution
which relates purely to a procedural or administrative matter to
be voted on by a show of hands.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

The Company commits to place shareholders’ interests
as top priority and protect their rights as provided in the
Articles. Shareholders can visit the Company’s website
(www.cflg.com.hk) to gain access to the Company’s up-to-date
information. They are entitled to be given due notice to
attend all the general meetings of the Company, vote all the
resolutions (except for those which shareholders may have
conflict of interest and are required to abstain from voting) and
raise questions to the management on the Group’s status and
development plans.

Shareholders as duly registered holders of the ordinary shares
of the Company (“Members”) are also entitled to requisition to
convene an extraordinary general meeting in accordance with
the Articles. Details of the requirements and procedures are as
follows:

0] Any one or more Members holding not less than one
tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company carrying the
right of voting at general meetings of the Company may
send a written requisition to the Board or the Company
Secretary to convene a general meeting.

(i) The requisition must be duly signed by the requisitionist,
specifying the requisitionist’s name, contact details and
the number of ordinary shares of the Company that the
requisitionist is holding and the matters proposed to be
discussed and transacted in the general meeting. The
requisition must be deposited at the Company’s principal
place of business in Hong Kong at Room 2202, 22nd
Floor, 118 Connaught Road West, Hong Kong.
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(i)  The Company will verify the requisition and upon

confirming that the requisition is proper and in order,
the Board will proceed with the necessary procedures
including the convening of a general meeting.

(iv)  The general meeting shall be held within two (2) months
after the deposit of the requisition.

If the Board does not within twenty-one (21) days from the
date of the deposit of the requisition proceed duly to convene
a general meeting, the requisitionist himself may convene a
general meeting in the same manner.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company is committed to a policy of open and regular
communication and reasonable disclosure of information
to its shareholders so that they can exercise their rights
in an informed manner. Information about the Company is
disseminated to the shareholders through:

° delivery of interim and annual results and reports to all
shareholders;

° publication of announcements on interim and annual
results on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange, and issuance of other announcements and
shareholders’ circulars in accordance with the continuing
disclosure obligations under the Listing Rules; and

° the general meeting of the Company is an effective
communication channel between the Board and
shareholders. As such, the Board members attended
the 2016 annual general meeting and other extraordinary
general meetings during the year to provide shareholders
with opportunities to understand the latest development
of the Group and raise questions.
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The 2016 annual general meeting was held on 25 May 2016 Z—ZE— "ERFAFRER_ZT—FH
The attendance record of the Directors at the general meeting A+ HABRIT - ZEERBRERG 2 HE

is set out below: ERE YT

Attendance/
Name of Directors Number of general meetings
EEfE HERE,BRRAKEXEH
Executive Director HITEFE
Mr. Jim Ka Shun' EREFELE 1/1
Independent Non-Executive Directors BIIHTESE
Mr. Gan Wei Ping HEFTE 0/1
Mr. Yip Ming HEREE 1/1
Mr. Kwan Sai Lok Edwin? 8t 4 5 A2 0/1
Mr. Lam Yuk Kwan? MEFE ST 2 0/1
Mr. Lau Siu Hang 2 ESEAE 1/1
Mr. Tsang Chung Sing Edward WINE A 0/1
Mr. Yun Kwok Wing Edwin? BR B &8 5F A2 0/1
1. Mr. Jim Ka Shun was appointed on 1 January 2016. 1. ERZhER T —R"F—A—B8EZF-
2. Mr. Kwan Sai Lok Edwin, Mr. Lam Yuk Kwan and Mr. Yun Kwok Wing 2. PASEE MEBEERBRBEKEERZ

Edwin retired on 25 May 2016. T RNERA-_t+RHHEHET-

During the year ended 31 December 2016, there were no HEZZT—R"F+_A=+—BLFE"
significant changes in the Company’s constitutional documents AA R Z B X HRF R HE RN E -
during the year.

China Financial Leasing Group Limited Annual Report 2016
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board acknowledges its responsibility to prepare the
Group’s accounts for each financial period and to ensure
that the financial statements are in accordance with statutory
requirements and applicable accounting standards. The Board
also ensures the timely publication of the consolidated financial
statements. The Directors, having made appropriate enquiries,
confirm that they are not aware of any material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
upon the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS
The Board as a whole is responsible for performing the
corporate governance duties including:

(@)  to develop and review the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance;

(b)  to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior
management;

(c) to review and monitor the Company’s policies and
practices in compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;

(d)  to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and

Directors; and

(e)  to review the Company’s compliance with the code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND
CONTROL

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for overseeing the
Group’s risk management and internal control systems and
reviewing their effectiveness at least annually.

INTERNAL

As a part of the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems, appropriate policies and controls have been designed
and established by the Group to ensure that assets are
safeguarded against improper use or disposal, relevant rules
and regulations are adhered to and complied with, reliable
financial and accounting records are maintained in accordance
with relevant accounting standards and regulatory reporting
requirements, and key risks that may impact on the Group’s
performance are appropriately identified and managed.

However, the risk management and internal control systems
can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance
against material misstatement or loss, as they are designed
to manage, rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve
business objectives.

The Group has adopted a three-tier risk management
approach to identify, evaluate and manage significant risks. The
operating units of the Group, as a first line of defence, identify,
evaluate, mitigate and monitor the risks, and report such
risk management activities to the Group’s management on a
regularly basis. The Group’s management, as the second line
of defence, provides support to the operating units and ensure
that the significant risks are properly manage and within the
acceptable range and report the situation to the Board at each
regularly scheduled meeting. The Board, as the final line of
defence, conducts an annual review of the overall effectiveness
of the Group’s risk management and internal control systems.
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The Group does not have an internal audit function and is
currently of the view that there is no immediate need to set up
an internal audit function within the Group in light of the size,
nature and complexity of the Group’s business. It was decided
that the Board would be directly responsible for internal control
of the Group and for reviewing its effectiveness. Procedures
have been designed for safeguarding assets against
unauthorised use or disposition, ensuring the maintenance of
proper accounting records for the provision of reliable financial
information for internal use or for publication, and ensuring
compliance with applicable laws, rules and regulations. The
situation will be reviewed from time to time.

During the year, the Board has reviewed and discussed the
risk management and internal control systems and no material
internal control failings, weaknesses or deficiencies have been
identified during the course of the review.

Based on the above, the Board were not aware of any areas
of concern that would have a material impact on the Group’s
financial position or results of operations and considered the
risk management and internal control systems to be generally
effective and adequate including the adequacy of resources,
staff qualifications and experience, training programs and
budget of the accounting, internal control and financial
reporting functions.

With respect to the monitoring and disclosure of inside
information, the Group has formulated its guidelines, with an
aim to ensure that the insiders abide by the confidentiality
requirement and fulfill the disclosure obligation of the inside
information.
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The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) has raised the compliance levels on Environmental,
Social and Governance Report (the “ESG Report”), China
Financial Leasing Group Limited (the “Company”), with its
subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) is pleased to present
the first ESG Report to demonstrate its commitment to
sustainable development. The ESG Report has been prepared
in accordance with the Environmental, Social and Governance
Reporting Guide of the Stock Exchange.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

The Group strives to create positive values and generating
economic value for the investors, the Group also dedicates to
fulfill its corporate social responsibilities in order to bring lasting
value to our community, environment and employees. The
Group focuses on four main aspects which are environmental
protection, employee wellbeing, lawful governance and
community involvement.

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

The Group is committed to acting in an environmentally
responsible manner through its office management and daily
operation. We adhere to the principle of recycling and reducing,
and implement green office practices to minimise the impact of
businesses on the environment.

Below practices are being implemented by the Group for
energy saving measure:

1. Double-sided printing and copying, promoting using
recycled paper and reducing energy consumption by
switching off idle lightings and electrical appliance.

2. Maintain the temperature at 25.5T, an optimal
temperature for comfort and energy savings.

3. Staff is recommended to switch off the lights and air-
conditioning in the meeting room when it is not in use.

Being an investment company, we are also aware of
our investment decision and its potential impact to the
environment. Should the opportunity arise, we would consider
the risk of the projects and return dynamics as well as the
positive environmental effects it will have.
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EMPLOYEE WELLBEING

The Group provides our employees with fair and competitive
remuneration to motivate them. Therefore, share options are
granted to selected directors (the “Directors”), employees or
other eligible participants of the Group, with a view to attract
and retain quality personnel and to provide them with incentive
to contribute to the business and operation of the Group.
During the year ended 31 December 2016, 34,300,000 share
options were issued to Directors, employees and other eligible
participants which can enable them to enjoy the performance
of the Group.

In addition, the Group’s policies and guidelines on recruitment
and promotion are formulated based on the principles that:

1. We are an equal opportunity employer.

2. We make decisions to engagement relating to
candidate’s relevance experiences and qualifications and
staff’'s promotion relating to performance.

3. Working hours, leaves and other fringe benefits are in
line with industry practice and/or (if applicable) adjusted
based on experience, qualifications and seniority of staff.

Staff breakdown
A breakdown of the number of the Company’s staff and
Directors as at 31 December 2016 is as follows:

BERA

AEBBETEERFRABRF NN H M
N BEE B AKERETES ([E
E]) BEREMABERSEARTE
Bt EEBRAREBEEFAS AR
E-RNET_A=+T—BLEFERNRAIE
TEF EEREMESERZ2EAELT
34,300,00017 f5 B - SR F AN EE 1
RIS -

AN AEBEERERE T T HNBE K
Eal &

1. HZMRFFHREREE-

2. FMRREGEHEBLRIEZEN
REBRAEEINKRRUARESE
ﬂ»o

3. IVFRH RAKEAMEFTEKRRER
BITEEN 80 Rk (ER)
R BERMFERHE-

AB S A
RZE—RE+A=+—"H AQA#E
BEINESZEAHEEAOT:

Staff Directors Total
BT 2= &t
Number (At 31 December 2016) AE (R —ZT— /K4 11 5 16
+=—A=+—81)
T NEER hE S A EEESRA R



China Financial Leasing Group Limited

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

BREE AL R IRECE

LAWFUL GOVERNANCE

The Group has complied with the applicable employment-
related laws and regulations currently in force in Hong Kong
(including but not limited to those relating to compensation
and dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working hours, rest
periods, equal opportunity diversity, anti-discrimination, other
benefits and welfare), as well as we do not employ staffs who
are below 18 years of age. The Group provided such rights and
benefits to its employees which are no less than those required
statutorily. No employees are paid less than the minimum wage
specified by the Minimum Wage Ordinance (Chapter 608 of the
Laws of Hong Kong). Monthly salary payments are made on
time according to respective employment contracts.

The Group strives to uphold the highest standard of business
ethics and integrity. We do not tolerate any form of corruption
or malpractice such as bribery, money laundering, extortion
and fraud. Being a responsible corporation, the Group strictly
prohibits any acts of bribery and corruption during its business
operation and reminds its employees to avoid any acts which
may cause conflict of interest from time to time.

During the year under review, the Group had not been charged
for any corruption within the Board, its senior management and
its staff, as well as its subsidiaries and their employees, during
their employment.

The Company is an investment company. During the year
ended 31 December 2016, the Group mainly engages in
investments in listed equity securities. It does not have any
major supplier of products, raw materials or services.
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The Group, together with the current Board, gives the utmost
priority to regulatory compliance. The Board advocates a high
level of independence so as to make independent judgements.
Therefore, the Company has appointed four independent non-
executive Directors. In selecting our Board members, the
Company already considered the experience, knowledge and
background of all four of independent non-executive Directors
that can contribute to the diversity and caliber of the Group.

COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT

The Group always endeavours to serve the community and
therefore highly respects its corporate social responsibilities.
The Group has also supported charity work/organisations/
non-governmental organisation by participating in various
activities or making donation in the total sum of approximately
HK$1,700,000. For the sake of social betterment, the Group
will also identify charitable, non-profit or educational institutions
and foundations that share its beliefs.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Jim Ka Shun (“Mr. Jim”), aged 35, was appointed as
executive Director of China Financial Leasing Group Limited
(the “Company”) on 1 January 2016. Mr. Jim is a holder of
Bachelor of Engineering in Computer Engineering from The
Hong Kong University of Science and Technology in 2004.
Mr. Jim is a Financial Risk Manager (FRM) granted by Global
Association of Risk Professionals and a licensed person to
carry out type 9 (asset management) regulated activities
under the Securities and Futures Ordinance (‘SFO”). Mr. Jim
has over 10 years of relevant experience in financial industry,
including asset management sector. Mr. Jim is the executive
director and type 9 responsible officer of Great Wall Securities
Limited (“Great Wall”) since April 2015. Great Wall is a licensed
corporation under the SFO with regulated activities type 1, 4
and 9 to provide brokerage, asset management and investment
advisory service to the clients. Mr. Jim also served as the
executive director and type 9 responsible officer of Phoenician
Limited, an asset management company under the SFO with
regulated activities of type 9, from March 2013 to March 2015.
Mr. Jim is responsible for managing the investment portfolio
to meet the specific objective and overseeing the trading
operation. Currently, Mr. Jim is an independent non-executive
director of Sun International Resources Limited, a company
listed on the Growth Enterprise Market of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (stock code: 8029).

Mr. Jim has entered into an appointment letter with the
Company with no specific term for appointment. In accordance
with the articles of association of the Company, he is subject
to retirement by rotation at least once in every three years.
The remuneration of Mr. Jim is HK$600,000 per annum which
is determined by the Board with reference to his respective
qualifications and experiences, his respective duties and
responsibilities with the Company, the Company’s performance
and the prevailing market situation.
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Save as disclosed above, Mr. Jim does not hold any
directorships in other listed public companies in the past
three years. Mr. Jim does not have any relationships with
other directors, senior management, substantial or controlling
shareholders of the Company.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Gan Wei Ping (“Mr. Gan”), aged 53, was appointed
as independent non-executive Director of the Company on
3 July 2014. Mr. Gan holds a Bachelor’s degree in Science
from Hunan University. He has over 27 years of experience
in banking system. Mr. Gan is retired and he worked for
Shenzhen Development Bank Company Limited since 1997,
The last position was sub-branch manager in Shenzhen and
he was responsible for overall management and operation
of the branch. From 1997 to 2001, he was manager in non-
performing assets department and responsible for handling
distressed assets. From 2001 to 2003, he was manager of
credit department and responsible for credit valuation and
monitoring assets valuation.

Mr. Gan has entered into an appointment letter with the
Company with no specific term for appointment. In accordance
with the articles of association of the Company, he is subject
to retirement at the Company’s next annual general meeting
and being eligible offer himself for re-appointment. Thereafter
he is subject to retirement by rotation at least once in every
three years. The remuneration of Mr. Gan is HK$120,000 per
annum which is determined by the Board with reference to
his respective qualifications and experiences, his respective
duties and responsibilities with the Company, the Company’s
performance and the prevailing market situation.

Save as disclosed above, Mr. Gan does not hold any other
positions with the Company or its subsidiaries, nor has he
held any directorships in other listed public companies in the
past three years. Mr. Gan does not have any relationships with
other directors, senior management, substantial or controlling
shareholders of the Company.
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Mr. Yip Ming (“Mr. Yip”), aged 63, was appointed as
independent non-executive Director of the Company on 19
December 2014. Mr. Yip is a graduate of The Institute of Fire
Engineers. He had worked in the Hong Kong Fire Services
Department for about 30 years and retired in 2009 at the
position of Senior Divisional Officer. During his tenure, he
had been seconded to attend professional and management
training at The Michigan State Police Training Centre, United
States of America in 1997, Fire Services Collages, England
in 2003 and Peking University in 2006. He has also been
appointed as the Honorary Aides De Camp to the Governor
of Hong Kong from 1994 to 1997 and to the Chief Executive
of Hong Kong Special Administrative Region (‘HKSAR”) from
1998 to 2001. After his retirement in 2009, he worked as
consultant in the Pyrotek Technology Limited until May 2014.

Mr. Yip has entered into an appointment letter with the
Company with no specific term for appointment. In accordance
with the articles of association of the Company, he is subject
to retirement at the Company’s next annual general meeting
and being eligible offer himself for re-appointment. Thereafter
he is subject to retirement by rotation at least once in every
three years. The remuneration of Mr. Yip is HK$200,000 per
annum which is determined by the Board with reference to
his respective qualifications and experiences, his respective
duties and responsibilities with the Company, the Company’s
performance and the prevailing market situation.

Mr. Yip does not hold any other positions with the Company
or its subsidiaries, nor has he held any directorships in other
listed public companies in the past three years. Mr. Yip
does not have any relationships with other directors, senior
management, substantial or controlling shareholders of the
Company.
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Mr. Lau Siu Hang (“Mr. Lau”), aged 61, was appointed as
independent non-executive Director of the Company on 12
June 2015. Mr. Lau obtained a Bachelor’s Degree of Business
Administration from University of Western Sydney in 2001,
and a Master of Arts Degree in Chinese Culture from The
Hong Kong Polytechnic University in 2013. He retired from
HKSAR Government as Principal Immigration Officer in 2010
after his 30-year service in HKSAR Government. During his
tenure, he worked extensively on human resources matters
and administration work. He was once seconded to Security
Bureau to assume the position of Assistant Secretary for
Security. Before his retirement, Mr. Lau assumed the position of
Deputy Director of the Hong Kong Economic and Trade Office
in Guangdong province, responsible for enhancing liaison and
communication with the mainland China officials and members
of trade association of Fujian, Guangdong, Guangxi, Jiangxi
and Hainan provinces/ regions. Mr. Lau is currently working
as a principal consultant in a consulting company, providing
training relation to recruitment interviews, risk management,
and services relation to financial and assets management.

Mr. Lau has entered into an appointment letter with the
Company with no specific term for appointment. In accordance
with the articles of association of the Company, he is subject
to retirement by rotation at least once in every three years.
The remuneration of Mr. Lau is HK$200,000 per annum which
is determined by the Board with reference to his respective
qualification and experiences, his respective duties and
responsibilities with the Company, the Company’s performance
and the prevailing market situation.

Save as disclosed above, Mr. Lau does not hold any other
positions with the Company or its subsidiaries, nor has he
held any directorships in other listed public companies in the
past three years. Mr. Lau does not have any relationships with
other directors, senior management, substantial or controlling
shareholders of the Company.
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Mr. Tsang Chung Sing Edward (“Mr. Tsang”), aged 62,
was appointed as independent non-executive Director of the
Company on 26 June 2015. Mr. Tsang is a holder of a Bachelor
Degree in Commerce from Curtin University, Australia and a
Master Degree in Business Accounting from Monash University,
Australia. Mr. Tsang is also a fellow member of The Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a member of CPA
Australia. Mr. Tsang had held senior positions in a number of
Hong Kong listed companies.

Mr. Tsang has entered into an appointment letter with the
Company with no specific term for appointment. In accordance
with the articles of association of the Company, he is subject
to retirement by rotation at least once in every three years. The
remuneration of Mr. Tsang is HK$200,000 per annum which
is determined by the Board with reference to his respective
qualifications and experiences, his respective duties and
responsibilities with the Company, the Company’s performance
and the prevailing market situation.

Save as disclosed above, Mr. Tsang does not hold any other
positions with the Company or its subsidiaries, nor has he held
any directorships in other listed public companies. Mr. Tsang
does not have any relationships with other directors, senior
management, substantial or controlling shareholders of the
Company.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
HRFHREE

The Board (the “Board”) of Directors (the “Directors”) is pleased
to submit their report together with the audited consolidated
financial statements of China Financial Leasing Group Limited
(the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”)
for the year ended 31 December 2016.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Group is principally engaged in short to medium term
capital appreciation by investing in a diversified portfolio of
investments in listed securities in Hong Kong. Details of the
principal activities of the subsidiaries are set out in note 16 to
the consolidated financial statements.

Further discussion and analysis of these activities as required
by Schedule 5 to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
including a description of the principal risks and uncertainties
facing the Group and indication of likely future development
in the Group’s business, can be found in the Management
Discussion and Analysis set out on pages 6 to 14 of this
annual report. This discussion forms part of this Report of the
Directors.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The Group’s results for the year ended 31 December 2016 are
set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on page 56.

The Directors did not recommend the payment of a final
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2016.

DONATIONS

Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the
year amounted to HK$1,700,000.
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TOTAL NUMBER OF ISSUED SHARES

Details of the movements in the total number of issued shares
of the Company during the year are set out in note 20 to the
consolidated financial statements.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted a new share option scheme (the
“SO Scheme”) on 12 January 2012. The purpose of the SO
Scheme is to enable the Company to grant options to eligible
participants as incentives or rewards for their contribution to
the Group. Eligible participants of the SO Scheme include,
without limitation, any persons who are employees, officers,
agents, consultants or representatives of the Group. The SO
Scheme became unconditional upon The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) granting on 13
January 2012 the approval of the listing of and the permission
to deal in the shares falling to be issued pursuant to the
exercise of any options to be granted under the SO Scheme
and, unless otherwise cancelled or amended, shall remain in
force for 10 years from the adoption date.

The maximum number of shares issuable under share options
to each eligible participant in the SO Scheme and the other
scheme (if any) in any 12-month’s period shall not exceed 1%
of the total number of issued shares of the Company for the
time being. Any further grant of share options to any eligible
participant in excess of this limit is subject to shareholders’
approval in a general meeting. The total number of shares
which may be issued upon exercise of all share options to
be granted under the SO Scheme and the other schemes (if
any) must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the shares of the
Company in issue (the “10% Limit") as at 12 January 2012,
being the date of passing the resolution by the shareholders
at the extraordinary general meeting approving and adopting
the SO Scheme. The Company may seek approval of its
shareholders in a general meeting to refresh the 10% Limit at
any time in accordance with the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on the Stock Exchange.
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The maximum number of shares which may be allotted and
issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and
yet to be exercised under the SO Scheme and other schemes
(if any) shall not exceed 30% of the total number of issued
shares of the Company from time to time. The making of an
offer to any Directors, chief executive or substantial shareholder
of the Company, or any of their respective associates must
be approved by the independent non-executive Directors
(excluding any independent non-executive Directors who or
whose associate is a proposed grantee of the share options).

In addition, any share options granted to a substantial
shareholder or an independent non-executive Director of the
Company or any of their respective associates, in excess of
0.1% of the total number of issued shares of the Company at
any time or with an aggregate value (based on the closing price
of the Company’s shares at the date of the offer) in excess of
HK$5,000,000, within any 12-month’s period, are subject to
the shareholders’ approval in a general meeting in accordance
with the Listing Rules.

Any offer may be accepted by an eligible participant in respect
of less than the number of shares which are offered provided
that such number is clearly stated in the duplicate letter
comprising acceptance of the offer duly signed by such eligible
participants and received by the Company together with a
remittance in favour of the Company of HK$1 (which shall not
be later than 21 days from the offer date). The exercise price
of the share options is determinable by the Directors, but
shall not be less than the highest of (i) the closing price of the
Company’s shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations sheet on the offer date; (ii) the average closing price
of the Company’s shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotations sheets for the five trading days immediately
preceding the offer date; and (i) the nominal value of the
Company’s shares.
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On 12 July 2016, a total of 34,300,000 share options
(the “Options”) were granted to eligible participants of the
Company. The exercise price of the Options was HK$0.4 each.
The exercise period of the Options was from 12 July 2016
to 11 July 2019. No vesting period or vesting condition was
imposed on the abovementioned Options. No Options were
exercised or lapsed during the year. For details, please refer to
the note 23 to the consolidated financial statement under the
section headed “Share-based Payments”

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 130 of
the annual report.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Articles of Association of the Company (the “Articles”) or the
laws of the Cayman lIslands, being the jurisdiction in which
the Company was incorporated, which would oblige the
Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing
shareholders.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF
LISTED SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during
the year ended 31 December 2016.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Under the Companies Law (2007 Revision) of the Cayman
Islands, approximately HK$147,041,000 in the share premium
account and approximately HK$19,444,000 in the reserve
arising from capital reduction of the Company completed on
10 December 2012, is distributable to the shareholders of
the Company provided that immediately following the date on
which the dividend is proposed to be distributed, the Company
will be in a position to pay off its debts as and when they fall
due in the ordinary course of business. The share premium
account may also be distributed in the form of fully paid bonus
shares.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the
date of this report were as follows:

Executive Directors
Mr. John Yen Jong Ling?
Mr. Jim Ka Shun'

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Gan Wei Ping

Mr. Yip Ming

Mr. Kwan Sai Lok Edwin?®

Mr. Lam Yuk Kwan?®

Mr. Lau Siu Hang

Mr. Tsang Chung Sing Edward

Mr. Yun Kwok Wing Edwin®

1. Mr. Jim Ka Shun was appointed on 1 January 2016.

2. Mr. John Yen Jong Ling resigned on 31 January 2016.

3. Mr. Kwan Sai Lok Edwin, Mr. Lam Yuk Kwan and Mr. Yun Kwok Wing

Edwin retired on 25 May 2016.

Pursuant to Article 88(1) of the Articles, Mr. Gan Wei Ping and
Mr. Yip Ming will retire by rotation and, being eligible, offered
themselves for re-election at the 2017 Annual General Meeting
(‘2017 AGM”).

INDEPENDENCE CONFIRMATION

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-
executive Directors of the Company, an annual confirmation of
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company considered that all of the independent non-executive
Directors are independent.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director proposed for re-election at the 2017 AGM
has a service contract with the Company which is not
determinable by the Group within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.
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DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS AND
CONTRACTS THAT ARE SIGNIFICANT IN
RELATION TO THE GROUP’S BUSINESS

No transaction, arrangements and contracts of significance
in relation to the Group’s business to which the Company’s
subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director of the
Company and the Director’s connected party had a material
interest, whether directly and indirectly, subsisted at the end of
the year or at any time during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES

As at 31 December 2016, the interests or short positions in the
shares, underlying shares of the Directors or chief executives
of the Company (as defined in the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the “SFO”)) and debentures of the Company or
any associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV
of the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be kept
under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange, pursuant to the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
(the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing
Rules, are set out below:

EERARAEERBE ZEAR
5 RUERGHNZERER

ARRMBARBEIVABASE R
B HARRIESNESZHETREF
ERNEEREEERAED YR FRKIF
NERERFECEARS RHEA
#J o

EERNRGOzER
RZZE—RF+-_A=+—H EFHAX
NAEIEZITHRA B R AR B =k (E ] #8 B
ZE(EEREBESHKHAEBKRMIEXVE) 2
B HEARD (EEREHFRBEKD
(IBHFREEEG]) ) REHF+H -HEBR
BES M E G FE35215E s AZIER
EFEzEaMzERRE  iRE L
AR ST ATE c L EITAESHET
BERGMBZESA ([FREFAES
THEARR KRBT S AR HT
W

Approximate
percentage of
the Company’s

Number of total number of
Name of Director Type of interest Position underlying shares issued shares
HEAT S BT
BEEpns Bz ER -} MEROHE BROAEBAE D
Mr. Jim Ka Shun Beneficial owner Long 5,700,000 0.77%
ERELE EnEAA =) (Note 1)
(FftEET)
Note: Bt 5

1. Please refer to details set out in the note 23 to the consolidated financial
statements under the section headed “Share-based Payments”.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS FERRK

As at 31 December 2016, according to the information publicly RZET—XF+-A=+—H8B KRB AH
disclosed, persons who had interests or short positions in the # 8 2 &% RIEF 5 KB EEH 2336
shares and underlying shares of the Company as recorded in 1§ EHEF 2 &L MATE - £ AR GE] 2K
the register required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO, W RBEKRHEEERIOARE 2 AT E

are set out below: U
Approximate
Total  percentage of
Number of number of  the Company’s
ordinary ordinary total number of
Name of shareholders Type of interests Position shares held shares held  issued shares
(RN
FEEER EBROROAY
BRRE® BRER R FEEBEREA BEAY CEER
Li Denian (“Mr. Li") Beneficial owner Long 77,770,000 167,010,000 22.51%
(Note 1)
FrE([FRE]) EGEAA i)
(FrzE1)
Interest of controlled Long 89,240,000
corporation
REHEE B i)
Cheung Man Kun Beneficial owner Long 46,120,000 46,120,000 6.22%
KNI EGEAA i)
Note: Bt 5

1. Dragon Metro Limited (‘Dragon Metro”) holds 89,240,000 shares. Mr. 1. Dragon Metro Limited ([Dragon Metro | ) #%5

Li beneficially owns the entire issued share capital of Dragon Metro. 89,240,0000% % 15 * & 5t 4 & = ¥ 5 Dragon
Therefore, Mr. Li is deemed, or taken to be, interested in all the shares Metro2 BB B TR A Bt $EFEHRBAE
held by Dragon Metro for the purpose of the SFO. &BIm S 25 £ W R A E YER Dragon

Metroffi 35 2 B0 A {0 R HE B #E % o
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CONNECTED TRANSACTION

During the year, the Company has paid/payable HK$660,000
as investment management fee to Avia Asset Management
Limited (“Avia Asset”), the investment manager of the Company
for the provision of investment management services to the
Company. The above transaction constitutes a de minimis
continuing connected transaction which is exempted from
reporting, annual review, announcement and independent
shareholders’ approval requirement under Rule 14A.76 (1) of
the Listing Rules.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, the
Company has maintained a sufficient public float as required
under the Listing Rules during the year and up to the date of
this report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was established in accordance with
the requirements of the code provisions of the Corporate
Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report of
reviewing and providing supervision over the Group’s financial
reporting process and internal controls.

As at the date of this report, the Audit Committee comprises
three independent non-executive Directors, Mr. Tsang Chung
Sing Edward (as Chairperson), Mr. Yip Ming and Mr. Lau Siu
Hang.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the audited consolidated

financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2016.
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AUDITOR =EEm

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended HZEZZE—=F+-_A=+—HILFEZ

381 December 2013 were audited by BDO Limited. The H&AIBHREBBEAVERZEAMER

consolidated financial statements for the years ended 31 FIERAREZ - BE_ZT—NF -=ZF

December 2014, 2015 and 2016 were audited by RSM Hong —AFE=_FT—R"F+HA=+—HIF

Kong. EzHReMBREzAPHEE(EB)E
TR EBTEZ

RSM Hong Kong retires and, being eligible, offers itself for HinEZE (HHE) @M EBMAERE -
re-appointment. A resolution will be submitted to the 2017 WHEEREFEEF  —HRARREHR_-Z
AGM for the re-appointment of RSM Hong Kong as auditor of —t&RRBAFAGREZ EUEHZEE

the Company. PIGEE (B GAMELMALRRA
% BLAT

On behalf of the Board REES®

China Financial Leasing Group Limited TFEEREESREFRAA

Jim Ka Shun EEE

Executive Director HITEF

Hong Kong, 28 March 2017 B —ET—+tF=A=+/\H
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

T S A% B il e

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
CHINA FINANCIAL LEASING GROUP LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
China Financial Leasing Group Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 56 to 129, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 December 2016, and the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement
of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2016, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (‘HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”) and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters.

We have determined that there are no key audit matters to
communicate in our report.

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the Other Information. The
Other Information comprises all the information in the annual
report other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the Other Information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the Other Information
and, in doing so, consider whether the Other Information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this Other Information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.
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China Financial Leasing Group Limited

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the
Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative
but to do so.

The Audit Committee assists the directors in discharging their
responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting
process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We
report our opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used

and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE

AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS (Continued)
Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

China Financial Leasing Group Limited Annual Report 2016
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on
our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance
in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Ng Wai Kwun.

RSM Hong Kong

Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

28 March 2017
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
A 1 1E i S At 2 A R

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE—_T—7Ft+-_A=t+—HLFE

2016 2015
ZEB-RF —T—IF
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
B 7E FET FHET
Revenue PN 8 1 1
Other income — Sundry income H A A —HIBUA 11 -
Net loss on financial assets at fair FBERIEAFEFEZ
value through profit or loss WG EERBFRE (15,253) (17,216)
(15,241) (17,215)
Administrative expenses TBFAX (22,415) (16,933)
Loss before tax BRBEATE 1B (37,656) (34,148)
Income tax expense FriS R 9 - -
Loss for the year FEEBR 10 (37,656) (34,148)
Other comprehensive income, HEfh2 MUz HRBIE:
net of tax:
Item that may be reclassified to A BT P Em s B -
profit or loss:
Fair value changes of available-for- A fit K & B 15 & & 2
sale financial assets NSSER-E) (633) -
Total comprehensive income AR TEEAEBEFEE
for the year attributable to 2HEHIKAEEE
owners of the Company (38,289) (34,148)
Loss per share gREE 14
Basic (cents per share) BER(FRABMW) (6.04) (5.97)
Diluted (cents per share) e (gRAB) (6.04) (5.97)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
A G IR DL

At 31 December 2016
RZE—REF+=-A=1+—H

2016 2015
ZE-XRFE —T—hF
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
B 2 FET FET
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y% WE N&EE 15 3,054 1,037
Available-for-sale financial assets ~ A] it H & B 8 & & 17 518 -
3,572 1,037
Current assets RBEE
Financial assets at fair value FERBE@IEAFEE
through profit or loss MBEE 18 66,244 33,725
Deposits and prepayments e RIEMRIE 19 345 198
Bank and cash balances RTINS &R 751 6,441
67,340 40,364
Current liabilities ik B=Ki
Accruals FEstE A 387 1,415
Net current assets REBEEFE 66,953 38,949
NET ASSETS BEE 70,525 39,986
Capital and reserves BEXRREE
Equity attributable to owners RNARIER AEG#ER
of the Company
Share capital fi% 2% 20 14,839 11,439
Reserves & 22 55,686 28,547
TOTAL EQUITY R 70,525 39,986

Approved by the Board of Directors on 28 March 2017 andare R_-_EZ—+FE=A-+/\BREE&#

signed on its behalf by: - WHEATEFERRESE:
Jim Ka Shun Yip Ming

BEEE =l

Executive Director Independent Non-executive Director
HITEF BUHHTEF

—EAEER hES ARG EEERAT



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HEZT—RF+A=+—HILFE

Capital Investment
Share reduction  Share option revaluation  Accumulated
Share capital premium reserve reserve reserve losses  Total equity

kx BRiEE EfHERE  BRERE REEMHR ZiER aEn

HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

Titn Tk Tk Tk Tk Tt Tt
(ote20)  (note 22(0)(i)  (note 22(0)fil)  (note 22(b)ii))  (note 22(d)(iv))
(H500)  (Ffakoo)i)  (Miskoow)i))  (WEroop)in)  (MsEeai))

At1 January 2015 RZF-hE-A-H 1,439 88,446 19,444 - - (45,195) 74134

Total comprehensive income and £ 2EUAREHEED

changes in equity for the year 2% - - - - - (34,148) (34,148)
At 31 December 2015 and RZE-RETZA=1-H
1 January 2016 R=F-7%-A-H 11,439 88,446 19,444 - - (79,343) 39,986
Total comprehensive income EERENALE
for the year - - - - (639) (37,656) (38,289)
Issue of shares on placements B EBETRE
(note 20(a)) (Hi520()) 3,400 60,400 - - - - 63,800
Share issue expenses RiEARR - (1,808) - - - - (1,809)
Share-hased payments (note 23)  RRER 3
(Hi323) - - - 6,833 - - 6,833
Changes of equity for the year B EFEH 3,400 58,595 - 6,833 (633) (37,656) 30,539
At 31 December 2016 RZB-RF
tZA=t-H 14,839 147,041 19,444 6,833 (633) (116,999 70,525
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

=PAN Nl =)
HAEBHEMER

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HEZ—RET_A=+—HILFE

2016 2015
—E—-XRE —hF
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5 FET FHET
CASH FLOWS FROM RETHRERE
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Loss before tax B H A1 /&5 18 (37,656) (34,148)
Adjustments for: BATIEB EH A%
Depreciation e 15 898 424
Loss on disposal of property, HEWE BE &
plant and equipment HiEEE - 219
Equity-settled share-based BmEEROERNK
payments 23 6,833 -
Net loss on financial assets at fair F@BERIEAFEFE
value through profit or loss MBEERBEE 15,253 17,216
Operating loss before working ZLiBEESE BEEE
capital changes (14,672) (16,289)
Purchases of financial assets at B EFEBEGSZATE
fair value through profit or loss TECHMGEE (101,199) (83,926)
Proceeds from disposals of HESABEREKRATE
financial assets at fair value AECMBEEL
through profit or loss Fr 1S58 53,427 100,467
(Increase)/decrease in deposits Tﬁﬁ&ﬁﬁn 18
and prepayments (&), md (147) 249
(Decrease)/increase in accruals &R CRd ), #Em (1,028) 1,091
Net cash (used in)/generated &% 5E8 (FrA) 8
from operating activities HEFE (63,619) 1,592
CASH FLOWS FROM REZHRERE
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Acquisition of subsidiaries W B Bt B8 A &) 24 (2,900) (425)
Purchases of property, plant and B EWE HMENXE
equipment 15 (15) (857)
Proceeds from disposal of HEME - KE K
property, plant and equipment HIEERIE - 70
Purchase of available-for-sale BEAHLE Eﬂ’ziéf =
financial assets (1,151) =
Net cash used in investing RETEFMARESEH
activities (4,066) (1,212)
e RS B E R AARAT



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
ARA Bl SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE—_T—7Ft+-_A=t+—HLFE

2016 2015
—E—-RF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FA&7T
CASH FLOWS FROM METHRERE
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issue of shares on ER &R 1TI D 2 FT1E E
placements 63,800 -
Share issue expenses paid ERNBRHETHS (1,805) -
Net cash generated from METEBFESRESFH
financing activities 61,995 -
NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE B &IkHELZSEHEREH
IN CASH AND CASH (R ),/ 1 hn
EQUIVALENTS (5,690) 380
CASH AND CASH R—B—HBZzHREK
EQUIVALENTS HE&EHEEB
AT 1 JANUARY 6,441 6,061
CASH AND CASH RT-ZA=+—HZzHER
EQUIVALENTS HEEEER
AT 31 DECEMBER 751 6,441
ANALYSIS OF CASH AND ReREASEEEBIW
CASH EQUIVALENTS
Bank and cash balances RITNIR e 8k 751 6,441
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o B S 5 R

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BHE-_T—7"Ft+-A=t+—HILLFE

1.

GENERAL INFORMATION

China Financial Leasing Group Limited (the “Company”)
was incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempted
company with limited liability under the Companies Law
(2007 Revision) of the Cayman Islands. The address of
its registered office is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive,
P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman
Islands. The address of its principal place of business
is Room 2202, 22nd Floor, 118 Connaught Road West,
Hong Kong. The Company’s shares are listed on the
Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred
to as the “Group”) are principally engaged in short to
medium term capital appreciation by investing in a
diversified portfolio of investments in listed and unlisted
securities in Hong Kong and overseas on a general
perspective. The principal activities of its subsidiaries
are set out in note 16 to the consolidated financial
statements.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (‘HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(the “HKICPA”). HKFRSs comprise Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”); Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKAS”); and Interpretations. These
consolidated financial statements also comply with the
applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange and
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622). Significant accounting
policies adopted by the Group are disclosed below.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE—_T—7Ft+-_A=t+—HLFE

2.

China Financial Leasing Group Limited

BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)
The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs
that are first effective or available for early adoption
for the current accounting period of the Group. Note
3 provides information on any changes in accounting
policies resulting from initial application of these
developments to the extent that they are relevant to
the Group for the current and prior accounting periods
reflected in these consolidated financial statements.

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS

(@) Application of new and revised HKFRSs

The HKICPA has issued a number of new and
revised HKFRSs that are first effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016.
None of these developments have had a material
effect on how the Group’s results and financial
position for the current or prior periods have been
prepared or presented.

(b) New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective
The Group has not early applied new and revised
HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet
effective for the financial year beginning 1 January
2016. These new and revised HKFRSs include the
following which may be relevant to the Group.

Annual Report 2016
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE-_T—7"Ft+-A=t+—HILFE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED 3.
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

(b) New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (Continued)

R R EIER] BRI
wEER (M)

(b) T HEME R AE AR RAE
BIEBMBHRERER ()

Effective for
accounting periods

beginning

on or after

RZBHzE

B E

HEEX

Amendments to HKAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows: Disclosure initiative 1 January 2017
ERerEAETRET AR @RER  KEE —T—+tF—-H—H
Amendments to HKAS 12 Income Taxes: Recognition of deferred tax 1 January 2017

assets for unrealised losses

BB ENFIZREFTAMBHR UAEREERIECHEEE —T—+tF—H—H

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

1 January 2018

EEMBREERFESSRU B LA —E-N\F—-H—H

Amendments to HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment: Classification and 1 January 2018
measurement of share-based payment transactions

BB EERE25R S 5T ANARAD BB 5K - —_ZT-N\F—H—H

BROEWRAHZHD BRI E

HKFRS 16 Leases
EAMBRELB 16 ME

The Group is in the process of making an
assessment of what the impact of these
amendments and new standards is expected to
be in the period of initial application. So far the
Group has identified some aspects of the new
standards which may have a significant impact
on the consolidated financial statements. Further
details of the expected impacts are discussed
below. As the Group has not completed its
assessment, further impacts may be identified in
due course.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ok T BV 285 A B

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE—_T—7Ft+-_A=t+—HLFE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

(b) New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (Continued)
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

The standard replaces HKAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement.

The standard introduces a new approach to the
classification of financial assets which is based on
cash flow characteristics and the business model
in which the asset is held. A debt instrument that
is held within a business model whose objective
is to collect the contractual cash flows and
that has contractual cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal
outstanding is measured at amortised cost. A debt
instrument that is held within a business model
whose objective is achieved by both collecting the
contractual cash flows and selling the instruments
and that has contractual cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal
outstanding is measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income. All other debt instruments
are measured at fair value through profit or loss.
Equity instruments are generally measured at
fair value through profit or loss. However, an
entity may make an irrevocable election on an
instrument-by-instrument basis to measure equity
instruments that are not held for trading at fair
value through other comprehensive income.

China Financial Leasing Group Limited Annual Report 2016

3. MM REBIERME

E5

(b)

HEL ()

A=A

CEME N RERNFTRE
BITERBMBHREER (&)
BB IR & CER B AT T
TA
ZEABMR BB G ELE
SO TE  BRAKE -
HEBIREMEES FHSA
HAE ERBReREFER
REEENEBENXE/T-
BUBBAENEREESRERB
WM EBRABBEZEBL
B RBEBREAINAS R
MAEEREMNEZEHNER
CRBZER TR HIREHE
PRAGTE R B 8 AR RK
BeEnReneakhkHETA
CEBEAPFAECEBLT
B DURBEHERAZNAS
EHREEAZZMNEZE
HReREZEBIE TN
ANFEF AE M2 E R EET
E-MEHMEBIAREIRE
WHIEAFEFE - RATE—
BEBEBREATEFZE A
il B AR AR T AR EE
AT e /3 52 - I FEHS
EEEZBRATEUAFE
FAEMEEKEE-



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE-_T—7"Ft+-A=t+—HILFE

3.

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

(b)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (Continued)
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

The requirements for the classification and
measurement of financial liabilities are carried
forward largely unchanged from HKAS 39 except
that when the fair value option is applied changes
in fair value attributable to changes in own credit
risk are recognised in other comprehensive
income unless this creates an accounting
mismatch.

HKFRS 9 introduces a new expected-loss
impairment model to replace the incurred-loss
impairment model in HKAS 39. It is no longer
necessary for a credit event or impairment
trigger to have occurred before impairment
losses are recognised. For financial assets
measured at amortised cost or fair value through
other comprehensive income, an entity will
generally recognise 12-month expected credit
losses. If there has been a significant increase
in credit risk since initial recognition, an entity
will recognise lifetime expected credit losses.
The standard includes a simplified approach for
trade receivables to always recognise the lifetime
expected credit losses.

The de-recognition requirements in HKAS 39 are
carried forward largely unchanged.
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3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

(b) New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (Continued)
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

HKFRS 9 substantially overhauls the hedge
accounting requirements in HKAS 39 to align
hedge accounting more closely with risk
management and establish a more principle based
approach.

The Group’s financial assets that are currently
classified as available-for-sale include unlisted
equity securities. The Group expects to irrevocably
designate these equity securities as fair value
through other comprehensive income. This will
give rise to a change in accounting policy. The
unlisted equity securities are currently measured
at fair value with fair value changes recognised
in other comprehensive income until disposal or
impairment at which point the fair value gains or
losses are recycled to profit or loss. Under HKFRS
9 recycling of the fair value gains and losses
is not permitted. HKFRS 9 requires fair value
measurement with fair value changes recognised
in other comprehensive income without recycling.

The new expected credit loss impairment model
in HKFRS 9 may result in the earlier recognition of
impairment losses on the Group’s financial assets.
The Group is unable to quantity the impact until a
more detailed assessment is completed.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
BHE-_T—7"Ft+-A=t+—HILLFE

3.

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

(b)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (Continued)
HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 replaces HKAS 17 Leases and related
interpretations. The new standard introduces a
single accounting model for lessees. For lessees
the distinction between operating and finance
leases is removed and lessees will recognise right-
of-use assets and lease liabilities for all leases
(with optional exemptions for short-term leases
and leases of low value assets). HKFRS 16 carries
forward the accounting requirements for lessors
in HKAS 17 substantially unchanged. Lessors will
therefore continue to classify leases as operating
or financing leases.

The Group’s office property leases are currently
classified as operating leases and the lease
payments (net of any incentives received from
the lessor) are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term. Under
HKFRS 16 the Group may need to recognise
and measure a liability at the present value of the
future minimum lease payments and recognise
a corresponding right-of-use asset for these
leases. The interest expense on the lease liability
and depreciation on the right-of-use asset will
be recognised in profit or loss. The Group’s
assets and liabilities will increase and the timing
of expense recognition will also be impacted as a
result.
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3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED 3. ZRMMITIRKBIERUE

m China Financial Leasing Group Limited

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)
(b) New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (Continued)
HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

As disclosed in note 26, the Group’s future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases for its office premises amounted
to HK$731,000 as at 31 December 2016. The
Group will need to perform a more detailed
assessment in order to determine the new assets
and liabilities arising from these operating leases
commitments after taking into account the
transition reliefs available in HKFRS 16 and the
effects of discounting.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, unless
mentioned otherwise in the accounting policies below
(e.g. certain financial instruments that are measured at
fair value).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise
its judgement in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies. The areas where assumptions and
estimates are significant to the consolidated financial
statements are disclosed in note 5.

The significant accounting policies applied in the

preparation of these consolidated financial statements
are set out below.

Annual Report 2016
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE-_T—7"Ft+-A=t+—HLFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(a)

Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include
the financial statements of the Company and
its subsidiaries made up to 31 December.
Subsidiaries are entities over which the Group has
control. The Group controls an entity when it is
exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from
its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over
the entity. The Group has power over an entity
when the Group has existing rights that give it
the current ability to direct the relevant activities,
i.e. activities that significantly affect the entity’s
returns.

When assessing control, the Group considers its
potential voting rights as well as potential voting
rights held by other parties. A potential voting right
is considered only if the holder has the practical
ability to exercise that right.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on
which control is transferred to the Group. They are
de-consolidated from the date the control ceases.

Intragroup transactions, balances and unrealised
profits are eliminated. Unrealised losses are
also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency
with the policies adopted by the Group.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
an investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less
impairment loss, unless the investment is classified
as held for sale (or included in a disposal group
that is classified as held for sale).

T RFFR

4. EREFTHEX (&)

(a)

TEEREEREBRAR

mE

BAEMBREREELRDF
FEKBRAEIEZ+TZ=A
S+—HBHHNUBHRER KB
ARAEAESEBEESIENE
B.ou RKEFATRNZIALE
FRAMSAIERBIR BB
NEREHEBNEIZE
ZE R e - R ANE BT HIRZ
B -ZAEENBAEENR
THEMEEABES (A
AEFEERBRLFRHER)
W BIARSBHZERITHE
H o

HERH SRR AEEEE
BHEEREEANEAMA
IRANBEREE -HERA
ABEERTTEBEREERN
BARAT TEEEEERN-

MERREEFHEEBEELR
SBZBEHEA AR MEE
HEKL Lz BRE LSS

E\EO

SEARBIRZR S HHN

BRI NNIG T IAEEH - BRIE
RoRHEBEEBRTIEERE
ELBEME SARERE
BRTUYEHE - HEFE K
BRrrAlzgtBREFLH
B DUBRTAEAEERA
B

RARBBMBARRKRS - R —
[ Bt B X ) 2 4R B 4R B AR
RERBEIE  BRIFEHRE
BOBRFELE (HFA
BOBRFKHELEZHES
=) Al 5 & Bl o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Aok T BV 285 A B

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HEZT—RF+A=+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
(b) Foreign currency translation
() Functional and presentation currency
Items included in the financial statements of
each of the Group’s entities are measured
using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates
(the “functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars, which is the Company’s
functional and presentation currency.

(i) Transactions and balances in each entity’s
financial statements
Transactions in foreign currencies are
translated into the functional currency
on initial recognition using the exchange
rates prevailing on the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign
currencies are translated at the exchange
rates at the end of each reporting period.
Gains and losses resulting from this
translation policy are recognised in profit or
loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured at
fair value in foreign currencies are translated
using the exchange rates at the dates when
the fair values are determined.

When a gain or loss on a non-monetary
item is recognised in other comprehensive
income, any exchange component of
that gain or loss is recognised in other
comprehensive income. When a gain or
loss on a non-monetary item is recognised
in profit or loss, any exchange component
of that gain or loss is recognised in profit or
loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
BHE-_T—7"Ft+-A=t+—HILLFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(b) Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(i)

Translation on consolidation

The results and financial position of all
the Group entities that have a functional
currency different from the Company’s
presentation currency are translated into
the Company’s presentation currency as
follows:

- Assets and liabilities for each
statement of financial position
presented are translated at the
closing rate at the date of that
statement of financial position;

- Income and expenses are translated
at average exchange rates for the
period (unless this average is not
a reasonable approximation of
the cumulative effect of the rates
prevailing on the transaction dates, in
which case income and expenses are
translated at the exchange rates on
the transaction dates); and

- All resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in the
foreign currency translation reserve.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
(b) Foreign currency translation (Continued)
(i) Translation on consolidation (Continued)

On consolidation, exchange differences
arising from the translation of monetary
items that form part of the net investment
in foreign entities are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated
in the foreign currency translation reserve.
When a foreign operation is sold, such
exchange differences are reclassified to
consolidated profit or loss as part of the
gain or loss on disposal.

(c) Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment held for use in
the production or supply of goods or services,
or for administrative purposes, are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at
cost, less subsequent accumulated depreciation
and subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if
any.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with the
item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item
can be measured reliably. All other repairs and
maintenance are recognised in profit or loss during
the period in which they are incurred.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(c)

(d)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is
calculated at rates sufficient to write off their cost
less their residual values over the estimated useful
lives on a straight-line basis. The principal useful
lives are as follows:

Motor vehicles
Furniture and office equipment

4 years
2 — 4 years

The residual values, useful lives and depreciation
method are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate,
at the end of each reporting period.

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant
asset, and is recognised in profit or loss.

Operating leases

Leases that do not substantially transfer to the
Group all the risks and rewards of ownership of
assets are accounted for as operating leases.
Lease payments (net of any incentives received
from the lessor) are recognised as an expense on
a straight-line basis over the lease term.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
(e) Recognition and derecognition of financial
instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
recognised in the consolidated statement of
financial position when the Group becomes a party
to the contractual provisions of the instruments.

Financial assets are derecognised when the
contractual rights to receive cash flows from the
assets expire; the Group transfers substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the
assets; or the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of the assets but has not retained control on the
assets. On derecognition of a financial asset, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received and the
cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised
in other comprehensive income is recognised in
profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the
obligation specified in the relevant contract is
discharged, cancelled or expires. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial
liability derecognised and the consideration paid is
recognised in profit or loss.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(f) Financial assets
Financial assets are recognised and derecognised
on a trade date basis where the purchase or sale
of a financial asset is under a contract whose
terms require delivery of the financial assets
within the timeframe established by the market
concerned, and are initially measured at fair value,
plus directly attributable transaction costs except
in the case of financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss.

The Group classifies its financial assets in the
following categories: at fair value through profit
or loss, loans and receivables and available-for-
sale. The classification depends on the purpose
for which the financial assets were acquired.
Management determines the classification of its
financial assets at initial recognition.

() Financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss
Financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss are either financial assets classified
as held for trading or designated as at
fair value through profit or loss upon initial
recognition. These financial assets are
subsequently measured at fair value. Gains
or losses arising from changes in fair value
of these financial assets are recognised in
profit or loss.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
(f) Financial assets (Continued)
(i) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active
market. These assets are carried at
amortised cost using the effective interest
method (except for short-term receivables
where interest is immaterial) minus any
reduction for impairment or uncollectibility.
Typically other receivables, bank and cash
balances are classified in this category.

(i) Available-for-sale financial assets
Available-for-sale financial assets are non-
derivative financial assets that are not
classified as loans and receivables or
financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss. Available-for-sale financial assets are
subsequently measured at fair value. Gains
or losses arising from changes in fair value
of these investments are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated
in the investment revaluation reserve, until
the investments are disposed of or there is
objective evidence that the investments are
impaired, at which time the cumulative gains
or losses previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified from
equity to profit or loss. Interest calculated
using the effective interest method and
dividends on available-for-sale equity
investments are recognised in profit or loss.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(9)

(h)

Other receivables

Other receivables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less
allowance for impairment.

If collection of other receivables is expected in one
year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the
business if longer), they are classified as current
assets. If not, they are presented as non-current
assets.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents represent cash
at bank and on hand, demand deposits with
banks and other financial institutions, and short-
term highly liquid investments which are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash and
subject to an insignificant risk of change in value.
Bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand
and form an integral part of the Group’s cash
management are also included as a component of
cash and cash equivalents.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Financial liabilities and equity instruments are
classified according to the substance of the
contractual arrangements entered into and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument under HKFRSs. An equity instrument
is any contract that evidences a residual interest
in the assets of the Group after deducting all of
its liabilities. The accounting policies adopted for
specific financial liabilities and equity instruments
are set out below.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
HEZT—RF+TA=t+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

() Other payables
Other payables are recognised initially at their fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method unless the
effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which
case they are stated at cost.

(k) Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct
issue costs.

U] Revenue recognition
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable and is
recognised when it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and the amount of
revenue can be measured reliably.

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion
basis using the effective interest method.

(m) Employee benefits
) Employee leave entitlements
Employee entitlements to annual leave and
long service leave are recognised when they
accrue to employees. A provision is made
for the estimated liability for annual leave
and long service leave as a result of services
rendered by employees up to the end of the
reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and

maternity leave are not recognised until the
time of leave.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT'S
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
BHE-_T—7"Ft+-A=+—HItFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
(m) Employee benefits (Continued)
(i) Pension obligations

The Group operates a mandatory provident
fund scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under
the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance for all qualifying
employees in Hong Kong. The Group’s
contributions to the MPF Scheme are
calculated at 5% of the salaries and wages
subject to a monthly maximum amount of
HK$1,500 per employee and vest fully with
employees when contributed into the MPF
Scheme.

(i) Termination benefits
Termination benefits are recognised at
the earlier of the dates when the Group
can no longer withdraw the offer of those
benefits, and when the Group recognises
restructuring costs and involves the
payment of termination benefits.

(n) Share-based payments
The Group issues equity-settled share-based
payments to certain directors, employees and
consultants.

Equity-settled share-based payments to directors
and employees are measured at the fair value
(excluding the effect of non-market based vesting
conditions) of the equity instruments at the date
of grant. The fair value determined at the grant
date of the equity-settled share-based payments is
expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting
period, based on the Group’s estimate of shares
that will eventually vest and adjusted for the effect
of non-market based vesting conditions.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE—_T—7Ft+-A=t+—HLFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(n) Share-based payments (Continued)
Equity-settled share-based payments to
consultants are measured at the fair value of
the services rendered or, if the fair value of the
services rendered cannot be reliably measured, at
the fair value of the equity instruments granted.
The fair value is measured at the date the Group
receives the services and is recognised as an
expense.

(o) Taxation
Income tax represents the sum of the current tax
and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable
profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from profit
recognised in profit or loss because of items of
income or expense that are taxable or deductible
in other years and items that are never taxable
or deductible. The Group’s liability for current
tax is calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in
the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation
of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences and deferred tax assets are recognised
to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profits will be available against which deductible
temporary differences, unused tax losses or
unused tax credits can be utilised. Such assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from the initial recognition of
assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
BHE-_T—7"Ft+-A=+—HItFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(o)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries, except where the Group is able to
control the reversal of the temporary difference
and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period when the liability
is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax
rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.
Deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except
when it relates to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in
which case the deferred tax is also recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

The measurement of deferred tax assets and
liabilities reflects the tax consequences that
would follow from the manner in which the Group
expects, at the end of the reporting period, to
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets
and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and when
they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority and the Group intends to settle
its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(p) Impairment of non-financial assets
The carrying amounts of non-financial assets are
reviewed at each reporting date for indications
of impairment and where an asset is impaired,
it is written down as an expense through the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income to its estimated
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount
is determined for an individual asset, unless the
asset does not generate cash inflows that are
largely independent of those from other assets or
groups of assets. If this is the case, recoverable
amount is determined for the cash-generating unit
to which the asset belongs. Recoverable amount
is the higher of value in use and the fair value less
costs of disposal of the individual asset or the
cash-generating unit.

Value in use is the present value of the estimated
future cash flows of the asset/cash-generating
unit. Present values are computed using pre-tax
discount rates that reflect the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset/cash-generating
unit whose impairment is being measured.

Impairment losses for cash-generating units are
allocated pro rata amongst the assets of the
cash-generating unit. Subsequent increases in
the recoverable amount caused by changes in
estimates are credited to profit or loss to the
extent that they reverse the impairment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE-_T—7"Ft+-A=t+—HItFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(q)

Impairment of financial assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
assesses whether its financial assets (other than
those at fair value through profit or loss) are
impaired, based on objective evidence that, as a
result of one or more events that occurred after
the initial recognition, the estimated future cash
flows of the (group of) financial asset(s) have been
affected.

For available-for-sale equity instruments, a
significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of
the investment below its cost is considered also to
be objective evidence of impairment.

For all financial assets, the carrying amount is
directly reduced by the impairment loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost,
if the amount of the impairment loss decreases
in a subsequent period and the decrease can
be related objectively to an event occurring after
the impairment was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed directly
through profit or loss. However, the reversal must
not result in a carrying amount that exceeds
what the amortised cost of the financial asset
would have been had the impairment not been
recognised at the date the impairment is reversed.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(r) Provisions and contingent liabilities
Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation arising as a result
of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made.
Where the time value of money is material,
provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditures expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the amount
cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation
is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless
the probability of outflow is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence
of one or more future events are also disclosed
as contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow is remote.

(s) Events after the reporting period

Events after the reporting period that provide
additional information about the Group’s position
at the end of the reporting period are adjusting
events and are reflected in the consolidated
financial statements. Events after the reporting
period that are not adjusting events are disclosed
in the notes to the consolidated financial
statements when material.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
BHE-_T—7"Ft+-A=+—HItFE

5.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities within the next financial year, are discussed
below.

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

The Group determines the estimated useful lives, residual
values and related depreciation charges for the Group’s
property, plant and equipment. This estimate is based
on the historical experience of the actual useful lives
and residual values of property, plant and equipment
of similar nature and functions. The Group will revise
the depreciation charge where useful lives and residual
values are different to those previously estimated, or it
will write-off or write-down technically obsolete or non-
strategic assets that have been abandoned.

The carrying amount of property, plant and equipment as
at 31 December 2016 was approximately HK$3,054,000
(2015: HK$1,037,000).

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: price risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and interest rate
risk. The Group’s overall risk management programme
focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets
and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the
Group’s financial performance.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)
(@) Price risk
The Group is exposed to equity price risk mainly
through its investment in equity securities.
The management manages this exposure by
maintaining a portfolio of investments with different
risk and return profiles. The Group’s equity price
risk is mainly concentrated on equity securities
quoted on the Stock Exchange.

The sensitivity analyses below have been
determined based on the exposure to equity price
risk at the end of the reporting period.

If equity prices had been 10% (2015: 10%)
higher/lower, loss after tax for the year ended
31 December 2016 would decrease/increase
by approximately HK$6,624,000 (2015:
HK$3,373,000). This is mainly due to the changes
in fair value of held-for-trading investments.

(b) Credit risk
The Group has no significant concentrations of
credit risk.

The credit risk on bank and cash balances is
limited because the counterparties are banks with
high credit-ratings assigned by international credit-
rating agencies.

The credit risk on financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss is limited because the
counterparty is a well-established securities broker
firm in Hong Kong.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
HEZT—RET_A=t+—HILFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

(c)

(d)

Liquidity risk

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current
and expected liquidity requirements to ensure that
it maintains sufficient reserves of cash to meet its
liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.
The Group’s financial liabilities are repayable on
demand or within one year.

Based on the assessment of the directors,
despite the continuous operating loss incurred
by the Group over the years, the liquidity risk
encountered by the Group is minimal considered
that the Group will have sufficient cash resources
to satisfy its future working capital after taking
into account the ability of the Group to conduct
fund raising activities and the ability to realise the
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.

Interest rate risk

As the Group has no significant interest-bearing
assets and liabilities, the Group’s operating cash
flows are substantially independent of changes in
market interest rates.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE—_T—7Ft+-A=t+—HLFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 6. HMEEERER (&)

(Continued)
(e) Categories of financial instruments at 31 e R=-EBE—XRE+=-A=+-—H
December 2016 e T B4 5
2016 2015
ZE-RF —T—IOF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAE7T
Financial assets: MBERE:
Financial assets at fair value BBRBEREATE
through profit or loss: HECHMBEE:
Held for trading BIEER 66,244 33,725
Loans and receivables B & EWRIE
(including cash and (BRERe R
cash equivalents) ReFEMEER) 896 6,596
Available-for-sale financial A ERFEE
assets 518 -
Financial liabilities: MEa&E:
Financial liabilities IR RETE 2
at amortised cost MBAaE 387 1,415
(f)  Fair values n AFE
The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial AEEMBEENRTBERE
assets and financial liabilities as reflected in WRREE MG E T BARR
the consolidated statement of financial position RATRM - EERBATEMR
approximate their respective fair values. o
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
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7.

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The following disclosures of fair value
measurements use a fair value hierarchy that categorises
into three levels the inputs to valuation techniques used
to measure fair value:

Level 1 inputs: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities
that the Group can access at the
measurement date.

Level 2 inputs: inputs other than quoted prices included
within level 1 that are observable for
the asset or liability, either directly or
indirectly.

Level 3 inputs: unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and
transfers out of any of the three levels as of the date of
the event or change in circumstances that caused the
transfer.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
HEZT—RF+A=t+—HILFE

7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS 7. 2A¥{HEE(E)
(Continued)
(a) Disclosures of level in fair value hierarchy at (a) A—E—-RE+=-A=+—H
31 December 2016: NWAFEBREE:
Fair value measurements using: Total
FRATHBAEZAFEFE: @t
Description Bt Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 2016

FE-EBH BEZEH BZEBHR ZE-XE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THET THET THET THET

Recurring fair value REMDTENE:
measurements:
Financial assets HBEE
Financial assets at fair value #EBEZKZATFE
through profit or loss TECHMBEE
Listed securities rmEH 66,244 - - 66,244

Available-for-sale financial At E BT B E

assets
Unlisted equity securities ~ 3F E TR A& 5 - - 518 518
Total @st 66,244 - 518 66,762
Fair value measurements using: Total
ERATIBABELATEHE: @st
Description Bt Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 2015
EF-ER EFER FZEHR —T-hF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET FAT TET
Recurring fair value YN
measurements:
Financial assets HEE
Financial assets at fair value EBERELTE
through profit or loss TECHBERE
Listed securities THES 33,725 - - 33,725
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE-_T—7"Ft+-A=t+—HItFE

7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS 7. 2AYE:E (&)

(Continued)
(b) Reconciliation of assets measured at fair value (b) RRE=ZERIAFLEFTEZEE
based on level 3: HER:
Available-for-sale
financial
assets-
unlisted equity
Description Bt securities
e
MBEE—
FLETRAES
HK$’000
THET
At 1 January 2016 RZE—RF—H—H -
Total gains or losses recognised in REMEERRERZ
other comprehensive income W sk 184858 (633)
Purchase BE 1,151
At 31 December 2016 R-ZE—R"F+-_HA=+—H 518
The total gains or losses recognised in other REMZ2HE RS ER 2 WS
comprehensive income are presented in fair value AEBBERN G EaRE
changes of available-for-sale financial assets in the EmEkEKxP 25 RA]H
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other HEMBEEZRATFEE
comprehensive income. o
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE—_T—7Ft+-A=t+—HLFE

7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

(Continued)

(c) Disclosure of valuation process used by

the Group and valuation techniques and
inputs used in fair value measurements at 31
December 2016:
The Group’s chief financial officer is responsible
for the fair value measurements of assets and
liabilities required for financial reporting purposes,
including level 3 fair value measurements. The
chief financial officer reports directly to the Board
of Directors for these fair value measurements.
Discussions of valuation processes and results
are held between the chief financial officer and the
Board of Directors at least twice a year.

For level 3 fair value measurements, the Group
will normally engage external valuation experts
with the recognised professional qualifications and
recent experience to perform the valuations.

China Financial Leasing Group Limited Annual Report 2016
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o B S 5 R

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BHE-_T—7"Ft+-A=+—HItFE

7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS 7. 2AYE:E (&)

(Continued)

(c) Disclosure of valuation process used by () XTEBR=-Z—X<E+=A
the Group and valuation techniques and =Et+—BFRRAGMERFUAR
inputs used in fair value measurements at 31 ATEFERFANGERN
December 2016: (Continued) R@ABRE: (#&)

Key unobservable inputs used in level 3 fair value FEBRrVTEIFEMERZ
measurements are mainly as below: ERTABEHGAEBEIES
HIEAT
Effect on Fair value
fair value as at
Valuation for increase 31 December
Description technique Unobservable inputs Value of inputs 2016
R-ZB—-X"§
BAEEK +=A
HA¥EZ =+-H
Bk HER FABERAE BE %8 NAFE
Private equity investments  Discounted Weighted average cost ~ 16.53% Decrease HK$518,000
classified as available-for- cash flow of capital
sale financial assets BEAERE  MEIHRERAE iy 518,000/ 1
PERARHENKEEL
LEREZRE Long-term revenue 3% Increase
growth rate
REP AL KX ban)
Long-term pre-tax 61.71% Increase
operating margin
ROBAEEER pAd-]
Discount for lack of 35% Decrease
marketability
Rz AR (eI

—EAEER hES A EEERAT



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ao £ B 2 R B

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE—_T—7Ft+-_A=t+—HLFE

8.

China Financial Leasing Group Limited

REVENUE WA
Revenue recognised during the year is as follows: FRERZBADAT
2016 2015
—E-XE —ZT—H#F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FAE T
Interest income FLEHA 1 1

The results arising from the fair value change of financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss are shown
separately in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income under the line of
“Net loss on financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss”. The gross proceeds from trading of securities
for the year amounted to approximately HK$53,427,000
(2015: HK$100,467,000).

The Group has identified its operating segments and
prepared segment information based on the regular
internal financial information reported to the Group’s
executive directors for their decisions about resources
allocation to the Group’s business components and
review of these components’ performance.

For both years ended 31 December 2015 and 2016,
the Group has identified only one segment and the sole
business of this segment is investment in listed and
unlisted securities. No separate analysis of segment
information by business segment is presented.

The Group’s revenue from external customers and
its non-current assets by geographical areas are not
presented as the geographical segments other than
Hong Kong are less than 10% of the aggregate amount
of all segments.

Annual Report 2016

ERBRERATEFEZHKEE
MATEZBMEERNFEER
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TH 42 %8 49 553,427,000 L (= &
— A% 100,467,000/ 7T ) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE-_T—7"Ft+-A=t+—HItFE

9.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE
The Group is not subject to any taxation under the
jurisdictions of the Cayman Islands and the British Virgin
Islands during the year (2015: Nil).

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made
in the consolidated financial statements since the Group
has no assessable profit for the year (2015: Nil).

The reconciliation between the income tax expense and
the product of loss before tax multiplied by the Hong
Kong Profits Tax rate is as follows:

FriEBiF

FR - AEEBEAHMNHASHER
RBREAEERAERANEMR
B(ZE—RF 8E)-

2NN S TR AN I e i
(ZT—RF8) WLEREF
BRESAVBRERANELEE-

P15 M 5 S S BR B AT S 1R SR A & 78
MEBRBRE ZRBEHEWT

2016 2015
—E-XRE ZZET—hF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET AT
Loss before tax PR 15 A &S 18 (37,656) (34,148)
Tax at the Hong Kong Profits BEBNEHTE16.5%
Tax rate of 16.5% (2015: 16.5%) (ZFE—AF:16.5%)
FTEZTIA (6,213) (5,634)
Tax effect of expenses that are PR R ASE 2 RIETE
not deductible 1,935 716
Tax effect of other temporary HMAERERFEERZ
differences not recognised MIERE (117) 2,249
Tax effect of tax losses not RIERMIBE B 2 Bi1E
recognised 4,395 2,669

PTG M5 X

Income tax expense

At the end of the reporting period the Group has unused
tax losses of approximately HK$168,849,000 (2015:
HK$138,641,000) available for offset against future
profits. No deferred tax asset has been recognised due
to the unpredictability of future profit streams. The tax
losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

T RFFR

REBERR AERERSAHIEE
8 #7168,849,0008 L (= —h
% :138,641,000/8 7T) » A K 35 oK
2R g ) o N MR JE Y IR B E K 2K
AR A TERA MM ERER B
HEER ERAAAE -

TEEREEREBRAR
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
HEZT—RF+A=t+—HILFE

10. LOSS FOR THE YEAR 10. FEBE#E
The Group's loss for the year is stated after charging the AEBEFEEBEERIBRATEER
following: 275 :
2016 2015
—E—XRE —HF
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FAET FHET
Auditor’s remuneration Z BB B & 310 310
Depreciation e 898 424
Loss on disposal of property, HEME BEMREZEE
plant and equipment - 219
Other equity-settled share-based Hph i A5 E IR0 BRI 3K
payments 1,706 -
Operating lease charges for T REFLEEHEER
land and buildings 502 873
11. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE 11. EETAFEX
2016 2015
—E-KREF —RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT T
Employee benefits expense EERMHAXZ
(excluding directors’ emoluments):  (FREEEHE) -
Salaries, bonuses and allowances ¥ & - fE4L 2 2E4 5,199 4,584
Equity-settled share-based EmEE RO AWK
payments 3,990 -
Retirement benefit scheme RRAE A GBI 3K
contributions 153 127
9,342 4,711
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT'S
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
HEZT—RET_A=t+—HILFE

11. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE 11.
(Continued)
(@) Pensions - defined contribution plans
Contributions totalling approximately HK$32,000
(2015: HK$27,000) were payable to the fund at
the end of the reporting period.

(b) Five highest paid individuals
The five highest paid individuals in the Group
during the year included 1 (2015: 1) director
whose emoluments are reflected in the analysis
presented in note 12. The emoluments of the
remaining 4 (2015: 4) individuals are set out

EBERABRAX (&)

(a)

(b)

BihE - EEMRTTE
1 FXHBEB 432,000 T (=
T—FHF 27,0008 L) ER
WEHRMES I

hERESHFMAL

AEEFAREESTHMA
+TEEILE (T —HF
Z)ES HFEMRBREN
1220 2o ifT-8p T4 (=
E-—hF:4H5)AT WS

below: ;o
2016 2015
ZE-RFE —T—hF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FA&T
Basic salaries and allowances HEAE & KERL 2,809 3,510
Equity-settled share-based B EE RO ERNNK
payments 3,990 -
Retirement benefit scheme RIREFEEIH R
contributions 72 75
6,871 3,585
The emoluments fell within the following bands: B F AT EE

Number of individuals

A
2016 2015
ZE—REF —E—HF
Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z Z1,000,0005% 7T - 2
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 T2
1,500,000 7T 2 2
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 t%
2,000,0007% 7T 1 =
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 T %E
2,500,0007% 7T 1 -
4 4
—TNFER hE S A EEEGRA R



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE—_T—7Ft+-_A=t+—HLFE

11. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE
(Continued)
(b) Five highest paid individuals (Continued)
During the year, no emoluments were paid by the
Group to any of the highest paid individuals as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office (2015: Nil).

The emoluments paid or payable to the remaining
8 (2015: 8) members of senior management fell
within the following band:

1. BERAFHEX (&)

(b)

TEEREHFMAL (F)
FRAEEYERETARKS
FMALXNBE  fERMN
AREBE AR 2 BE) X
EREBME (T —h%F:
&) -

NFHAMNTFHTEE (ZF
—hAF:8HK) B PEEEK
B2EE&N FATEEE :

Number of individuals

AR
2016 2015
—B-Af —T-AF
Nil to HK$1,000,000 £ 21,000,000 7T 8 8
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE-_T—7"Ft+-A=t+—HItFE

12. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF 12. EEEAIKER

DIRECTORS
(a) Directors’ emoluments (@) E=M:
The remuneration of every director is set out BRESFHMEI BT :
below:
Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of
a person’s services as a director, whether
of the Company or its subsidiary undertaking
RERARAARENBARNEEZALRBEABEEME
(Note (i)
Estimated
money value
Discretionary of other
Fees bonus benefits Total
(BaE())
HitfER 2
we WERAL HAEHER - H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
THEL TR TR TR
Executive Directors BTEES
Mr. John Yen Jong Ling BRREE
(Note i) (P (i) 50 250 - 300
Mr. Jim Ka Shun EEERE
(Note (i) (P 2 i) 600 - 1,137 1,737
650 250 1,137 2,037
Independent Non-executive BIYFHTES
Directors
Mr. Gan Wei Ping HETAE 120 - - 120
Mr. Yip Ming LD 200 - - 200
Mr. Kwan Sai Lok Edwin fue Sk
(Note (iv) (FteE(v) 48 100 - 148
Mr. Lam Yuk Kwan (Note (v) ~ #EZL4E (FizEd) 48 100 - 148
Mr. Lau Siu Hang (Note (v)) A0EEE (FWY) 200 - - 200
Mr. Tsang Chung Sing Edward ~ Z1A2 % 4 (M)
(Note (vi) 200 - - 200
Mr. Yun Kwok Wing Edwin REXLE
(Note (vii) (Pt aE(vil) 80 100 - 180
896 300 - 1,196
Total for 2016 ZE-RES; 1,546 550 1,137 3,233

T RFFR TEEREEREBRAR



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ao £ B 2 R B

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HEZT—RF+A=t+—HILFE

12. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF 12 EEEARER (&)
DIRECTORS (Continued)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued) @ EZM< (4
The remuneration of every director is set out SREEFEHFHMHIN LT
below: (Continued) (%&)

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of
aperson’s services as a director, whether
of the Com any or its subsidiary undertaking

RERARAZENBRARES AT RBCHIELME

(Note (i)
Estimated
Discretionary - money value of
Fees bonus  other benefits Total
(BzE()
\ B2
e KL Eﬁ“ﬁﬂ [ @t
HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS 000
TAT TAT TAT TAT
Executive Directors HTES
Mr. John Yen Jong Ling Boreit
(Note (i) (P akd) 600 - - 600
Mr. Sean SK Soo (Note (vii)) & Z %54 (M3 (vii)) 324 - - 324
924 - - 924
Non-executive Directors FHITEE
Mr. Chan Ming Wing (Note (ix))  PRE3S % 4 ( [‘ﬁﬁfgx)) 50 - - 50
Mr. Lam Fung Francis (Note (x))  #R& %4 (B (x) 18 - - 18
068 - - 68
Independent Non-executive ~ BUFH{TES

Directors
Ms. Chan Man Yi (Note (xi)) ~ FR&UE/ME (FiEE(xi)) 40 - - 40
Mr. Gan Wei Ping HRELE 120 - - 120
Mr. Liu Meng Fah Liu Meng Fahst £

(Note (vii) ( P & vii )> 61 - - 61
Mr. Wiliam Keith Jacobsen ERASE (FE)

(Note (xi) 40 - - 40
Mr. Yip Ming EREE 200 - - 200
Mr. Chow Ka Man (Note (x)  EZ X4 (MzK) 18 - - 18
Mr. Kwan Sai Lok Edwin Fe S

(Note (v) (K E?(i\&) . 83 - - 83
Mr. Lam Yuk Kwan (Note (v)  #EE % & (Fii 5 (v)) 83 - - 83
Mr. Lau Siu Hang (Note (v) 2k s (FEy) 110 - - 110
Mr. Tsang Chung Sing Edward ~ B1RE %4

(Note (vi) ( ﬁﬁa?(v&) 108 - - 103
Mr. Yun Kwok Wing Edwin REXL

(Note (vii) (B (i) 103 - - 103

961 - - 961
Total for 2015 “E-nESH 1,953 - - 1,953
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#o o A B R P
For the year ended 31 December 2016

HEZT—RET_A=t+—HILFE

12. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF
DIRECTORS (Continued)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

Notes: (i) Estimated money value of other benefits include
leave pay, share options, insurance premium and
club memberships.

(i) Resigned on 31 January 2016

(i) Appointed on 1 January 2016

(iv)  Appointed on 22 April 2015 and retired on 25
May 2016

(v)  Appointed on 12 June 2015

(vi)  Appointed on 26 June 2015

(vii)  Appointed on 26 June 2015 and retired on 25
May 2016

(viii) Resigned on 2 July 2015

(ix) Retired on 22 May 2015

(x)  Appointed on 22 April 2015 and resigned on 16
June 2015

(xi)  Resigned on 30 April 2015

There was no arrangement under which a director
waived or agreed to waive any emoluments during
the year (2015: Nil).

T RFFR

12. EEEMNRER (F)

(@ E=M< (&)

BEE: ()

(i)

(i)

v)

(viil)

(ix)

(xi)

HE@EAzEHata’
BERERYFE B
i RRBEREME

—E—X"¥—A
—+—HEIT
RZZE—XR"F—HF—H
BEAT

RZZE—RHFWMA
Z+HEZERRZ
E—RFERA=-+HH
EHE
RZTE—RAFAA+=
HEZT
RZZE—RHFA~A
Zt+RNBEZE
RZE—RF XA
Z+NHEZERRZ
ET-RFRA=-+HH
T
R-ZZE—RF+EA-H
B E
RZE—RFHA
—+-HH#E
RZE—RHFWMA
“+tHEZERRZ
T—RFNA+NBE
£
R-_ZE—RAFMA=+
HEHE

FR - TESEERENRE
MEAAMNEZ2ZH(ZZ
—RE|E) e

TEEREEREBRAR
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
HEZT—RF+A=t+—HILFE

12. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF
DIRECTORS (Continued)
(b) Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts
No significant transactions, arrangements and
contracts in relation to the Group’s business to
which the Company was a party and in which
a director of the Company and the director’s
connected party had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the
year or at any time during the year.

13. DIVIDENDS
The directors do not recommend the payment of any
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2016 (2015:
Nil).

14. LOSS PER SHARE

Basic loss per share

The calculation of basic loss per share attributable
to owners of the Company is based on the loss for
the year attributable to owners of the Company of
approximately HK$37,656,000 (2015: HK$34,148,000)
and the weighted average number of ordinary shares of
623,917,095 (2015: 571,949,882) in issue during the
year.

Diluted loss per share

The effect of all potential ordinary shares would be anti-
dilutive for the year ended 31 December 2016 and the
Company did not have any potential ordinary shares
for the year ended 31 December 2015. Diluted loss per
share was the same as the basic loss per share for the
year ended 31 December 2016 and 2015.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
HEZT—RET_A=t+—HILFE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. % HERRE

Furniture
Motor and office
vehicles equipment Total
HHE
BE BRAERE et
HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
THET TFHET FET
Cost DN
At 1 January 2015 RZE—HF—A—H 247 657 904
Acquisition of a subsidiary Y& — fE K B A ) - 280 280
Additions NE 857 - 857
Disposals & (247) (657) (904)
At 31 December 2015 and MRZ-ZZE—HF
1 January 2016 +ZA=+—HAK
—E—-—RF—H—H 857 280 1,137
Acquisition of a subsidiary Yt B& — Rk B A 7
(note 24) (Ft5E24) 2,900 - 2,900
Additions NE - 15 15
At 31 December 2016 R-E—RF
+=-—A=+—8 3,757 295 4,052
Accumulated depreciation 31 &
At 1 January 2015 R—_E—RF—A—H 135 156 291
Charge for the year FEER 118 306 424
Disposals & (171) (444) (615)
At 31 December 2015and T —FhHF
1 January 2016 +ZHA=+—HXK
—E—RHF—H—H 82 18 100
Charge for the year FEEHA 788 110 898
At 31 December 2016 RZE—R4F
+=—RA=+— 870 128 998
Carrying amount FREE
At 31 December 2016 RZE—RF
+Z—H=+—H 2,887 167 3,054
At 31 December 2015 R-E—RF
+=—RA=+—H 775 262 1,037

T RFFR
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For the year ended 31 December 2016

HEZT—RF+A=t+—HILFE

16.

104

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the subsidiaries as at 31 December 2016

16.

RBAR2RE

RoE—RNE+_A=+—HB2ZK

are as follows: BRARIFBHET:
Place of
incorporation/
registrationand ~ Particular of issued Percentage of ownership/
Name operation share capital voting power/profit sharing Principal activities
AT/ B
tH REERE BRORRHE BER/RER/BUAEEDL IZXH
Direct Indirect
% ]
2016 2015 2016 2015
ZE-r3F “E2-1F Z®R-5F —F-1F
China Financial Leasing Group Hong Kong 1 ordinary share 100% 100% - - Dormant
(Hong Kong) Limited
TEEREESE (FR)ARAR B 1REBR LY
*Aimhigh Global Investments Limited ~ British Virgin Islands 1 ordlinary share of - 100% - - Dormant
(‘Amhigh’) USSt
*Aimhigh Global Investments Limted  £BRZEE 1REEIZTL TEEH
([Aimhigh ) EBR
Affluent Crest Investments Limited ~ Hong Kong 1 ordinary share 100% 100% - - Provision of
management
services
BRERERRAA Bh 1REER RELEERH
China Finance Qianhai Limited British Virgin Islands 1 ordinary share of 100% - - - Investment holding
USS1
hELRABARAT IBRAES 1REEIETL REBR
bt Hn
B JHAX
Colour Charm Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands 1 ordinary share of 100% - - - Asset holding
(‘Colour Charm”) US$1
vEERERAR ([FE]) XBRLHE 1REEIETL RREE
LRk

China Financial Leasing Group Limited
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
HEZT—RET_A=t+—HILFE

16. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

16. RMBARAZRE (&)

(Continued)
Place of
incorporation/
registration and Particular of issued Percentage of ownership/
Name operation share capital voting power/profit sharing Principal activities
HREL/ BT
£R REEHE ERTRAGHE BAR/RER/ BB AL IEXR
Direct Indirect
% [}
2016 2015 2016 2015

“E-RE ZT-0%

“§-AE “T-EE

Peaceful Gain Limited British Virgin Islands 1 ordinary share of 100% - - - Investment holding
HNER R US$
EERAES RERIETL RESR
aﬁ%
China Financial Leasing Hong Kong 1 ordinary share 100% - - - Inactive
Investments Limited
TEEREERAARAT B 1REER LEiE S
China Finance Qianhai (Hong Kong) ~ Hong Kong 1 ordinary share - - 100% - Inactive
Limited
hEERAE (BB ERA Bk 1RERR LEY
Full Honest Corporation Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary share - - 100% - Investment holding
RN Bh 1REER AR
MIEBERERRRAR People’s Republic of  Registered capital of - - 100% - Provision of
(R B) China (‘PRC) Renminbi 100,000 consultancy services
A EAEEENERAT FEARANE  EREFRARE REHARE
(FRYITER ) ([ &) 100,0007C
* Aimhigh was struck off during the year. Aimhigh2 7 £ R 51 B ©

#YNITEH is a wholly-owned foreign enterprise
established in the PRC.

The above list contains the particulars of subsidiaries

which principally affected the results, assets or liabilities
of the Group.

T RFFR
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE—_T—7Ft+-_A=t+—HLFE

18.

17. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL 17. A#tHEMKEE
ASSETS
2016 2015
—E-XRE Z—ET—hF
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FET FA&T
Unlisted equity securities, BEAVFEFEZ
at fair value IE LT IRANFE 57 518 -
Available-for-sale financial assets are denominated in AP ENEEENBITEE:
Hong Kong dollars.
FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 18. ZEEBEZRBR AT EFEZH
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS KEE
2016 2015
—E-RE ZZT—hF
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FHET FET
Equity securities listed BAGTE
in Hong Kong, at cost BB LETRAES 80,881 49,291
Net fair value loss NEEEEFE (14,637) (15,566)
Fair value as at 31 December Rt+t-—A=+—B2Z2A¥E 66,244 33,725

106

The carrying amounts of the above financial assets are

classified as held for trading.

The investments included above represent investments
in listed equity securities that offer the Group the
opportunity for return through dividend income and fair
value gains. They have no fixed maturity or coupon rate.

China Financial Leasing Group Limited
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18.

—RETZA=T—HIFE

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS
(Continued)

The fair values of the listed securities are based on
quoted market prices.

Changes in fair values of financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss are recorded as net loss on
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

The realised loss and unrealised gain on financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss for the year ended 31
December 2016 are approximately HK$16,182,000 and
HK$929,000 respectively. The realised and unrealised
losses on financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss for the year ended 31 December 2015 were
approximately HK$3,312,000 and HK$13,904,000
respectively, the aggregate of which was recorded as net
loss on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

T RFFR

18.

ERBERRAVEFAEZY
BEE (&)

-
EHmE
o
>t

RFEDEAHTER

%Lﬁéﬁz@ﬁ@?ﬂézﬁmﬂﬁF
T ERABRELEME
EH&Z %Epuaﬁﬁﬁkﬂ?ﬁ RN
BB BEEBRER-

HEZ-Z —/‘—\iJr—ﬂ:Jr—El
tFE FRBREAFEFEY
WHBEEs2EREEBERRER
Uz 2 Bl 49 &216,182,0007 T &
929,000 L - BHE-_T—HF+=
A=+—RHIEFE SREZEA
Tr@ﬁ%:zﬁﬂkéiizza“fﬁﬁﬂi
''''''' I8 BB 9 R4 /3,312,000% 7T
13,904,000 70 B AEED RN
mABRAEMEZAKZRPETA
FERBEREATFTEFECUBEE
ZEBEFEET -
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18. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE

108

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS
(Continued)

Particulars of the Company’s financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss as at 31 December 2016 are as
follows:

18. EBBEJ/BRAFETE

BEE (&)

KRR T —

N

/N

AZ@EBRmER

BEFBWOT:

it

FroA=+-

Bt EZ2HH

Dividend
income Net assets
Proportion received attributable
Place of Number of  of investee’s Fair value during the Dividend to the
Name of investee company incorporation shares held capital owned Cost Market value (losses)/gains year cover Company
FERRRYE A¥E FRfK KAFEE
FRENAER AMAILE  FEROUE  ARERLA RE wE (FR) k& BREBA REtkE BEFE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL TET TR TEL TR

(@) China Internet Investment Finance ~ Bermuda 18,480,000 4.06% 7,356 6,376 (980) N/A 8,287
Holdings Limited (“China Internet”) T
PHERARACREEERAT BRE

((PEERE])
(b)  KSL Holdings Limited (KSL") Cayman Islands 4,548,000 1.11% 13,740 13,599 (141) N/A 1,139
TiEf
KSL Holdings Limited ([KSL1) ~ R&HES

(c) Newtree Group Holdings Limited ~ Cayman Islands 10,638,000  Less than 1% 1,754 5,063 3,299 N/A 1,730

(‘Newtreg’) DR T
1%
RIEEERERRA(TRI]) H2ES

(d) Long Success International Bermuda 13,450,000  Less than 1% 8,105 - (8,105) N/A -
(Holdings) Limited DR TR
("Long Success’) 1%

BERER (BR)ERAF ARE
(k)

(e) Grand Peace Group Holdings Bermuda 6,918,000 1.5% 15,282 17,433 2,151 N/A 1,633
Limited (“Grand Peace”) TEA
BEREERERLAA([BR]) BRE

(f) ~ Zheng Li Holdings Limited Cayman Islands 1,225,000  Less than 1% 6,662 6,431 (231) N/A 188
(‘Zheng L") DR TR

1%
ENERAERAR ([EN]) REHS

(9) King Force Group Holdings Limited ~ Cayman Islands 80,000,000 1.12% 10,527 3,520 (7,007) N/A 733
(*King Force”) T
TREEERERAR ([BB]) REHS

(h) REXLot Holdings Limited Bermuda 114,950,000 1.15% 17,015 13,219 (3,796) N/A 68.646
(‘REXLot") TR
HEPPERBERAR BRE

(MB%H#%])
() Yat Sing Holdings Limited Cayman Islands 165,000  Less than 1% 440 613 178 N/A 24
(*Yat Sing’) DR TR
1%
BRERERAR ([BM]) REHS
80,881 66,244 (14,637)
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18. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS
(Continued)

A brief description of the business and financial
information of the listed investee companies, based on
their published annual and interim reports, is as follows:

(@) China Internet is principally engaged in investment
in equity and debt securities in order to achieve
medium to long term capital appreciation. The
audited consolidated loss attributable to owners
of China Internet for the year ended 31 December
2016 was approximately HK$74,015,000. As at
31 December 2016, the audited consolidated
net asset value attributable to owners of China
Internet was approximately HK$204,017,000.

(b) KSL is principally engaged in provision of
engineering consulting, contracting and project
management services in Hong Kong with a
focus on geotechnical engineering works.
The audited consolidated profit attributable
to owners of KSL for the year ended 31 July
2016 was approximately HK$14,722,000
(2015: HK$29,935,000). As at 31 July 2016,
the audited consolidated net asset value
attributable to owners of KSL was approximately
HK$107,249,000 (2015: HK$92,527,000). The
unaudited consolidated loss attributable to owners
of KSL for the six months ended 31 January
2017 was approximately HK$4,254,000 (2016:
profit of HK$17,234,000). As at 31 January
2017, the unaudited consolidated net asset value
attributable to owners of KSL was approximately
HK$102,995,000 (2016: HK$109,761,000).

T RFFR

18. ZBBRBBRAFEFEZH
BEE (&)

18 38 5L B, A B0 4 [ R HI 3R 5 4R
27 FHRAARNEBRMBE
BEAmT

() FHREBMEXTBHERER
BEELERE UWERFE
HEREBE -HE _T— X
F+-_A=+—RHLEFEZ
PR ER AE(LEE
e A BB 474,015,000
BrLr-m—ZE—RNFE+=A
=+—B HEEBEEEA
EHEEZRAEEFAEY
204,017,000 7T ©

b) KSLEEREEFTBRME
TRERN ABREEEE
BR% ZEIRBELTIRE
H-BE_ZT—XNF+LA
=+ —HIEFEZKSLEAR
AN EBZE A &L
14,722,000 T (Z & —H
129,935,000 7T ) B> —
T—-XNFE+A=+—H KSL
EEABLKEEZEAE
EFE 107,249,000 7T
(ZZE—H%:92,527,000
BIL) BE T — L F—
A=+—81EXEA ZKSL
EEANBLHRECEZES
B 18 #494,254,000/8 £ (=
T — XF & F17,234,000
BL) N _ZET—+F—A
=+ —H KSLEHB AEH
AEEREEGEEFED
102,995,000 70 ( ZZE — X
£ :109,761,0008 7T ) °
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18. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS
(Continued)
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(©

China Financial Leasing Group Limited

Newtree is principally engaged in () manufacture
and trading of clinical and household hygienic
disposables and trading of related raw materials;
(i) trading of coal products; (iii) wholesale and
retail of household consumables; (iv) sales and
distribution of jewellries and watches; (v) design
and development of three-dimensional animations,
augmented reality technology application and
e-learning web application; and (vi) provision
of educational technology solutions through
online education programs and provision of
English language proficiency tests. The audited
consolidated loss attributable to owners of
Newtree for the year ended 31 March 2016
was approximately HK$284,394,000 (2015:
HK$258,875,000). As at 31 March 2016, the
audited consolidated net asset value attributable
to owners of Newtree was approximately
HK$315,574,000 (2015: HK$603,956,000).
The unaudited consolidated loss attributable
to owners of Newtree for the six months
ended 30 September 2016 was approximately
HK$153,079,000 (2015: HK$60,184,000). As at
30 September 2016, the unaudited consolidated
net asset value attributable to owners of Newtree
was approximately HK$386,857,000 (2015:
HK$529,408,000).

Annual Report 2016

18. ZBBRBBRAFEFEZH
BEE (&)

(c)

RNFERFONHENEER
BEERREREN— XK
WERARKREBERBERM
K (i) E B KR E m s (i)t
BERTEREBERER (iv)
DIHEHBE RESK: (viER =
HEEZ EEERREMER
BAEBHRHEREAER
BRET R A Rvi)E B
FHERBREREHRE KM
BAFRRRBEEBKE
B -BHE-_T—XRE=ZA
=+ —BUEFEZRIESR
ANEEREBEZEEEBERY
284,394,000 T (ZE—H
F : 258,875,000 7T ) ° R
—T-XFZA=t-—H K
NHEBANEBLEEZEEE
B FE#315,574,000/% 7T
(—Z—F % :603,956,000
BIL) HE-_ZT—FNhA
=t+HERNBEAZRINES
ABERCEZEEBRAY
153,079,000 L (=ZE—H
F:60,184,0008 7T) ° > —
T-RNFLA=Z+H &I
BEAEBLHREEZEZEEE
& JF {H #7386,857,000/8 7T
(—Z—FH % :529,408,000
HIT) ©
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18. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS
(Continued)

(d)

Long Success is principally engaged in the trading
of wine and alcohol. Long Success’s shares were
suspended for trading on the Stock Exchange
since 3 December 2013 and delisted on 19
October 2016. The audited consolidated loss
attributable to owners of Long Success for the
year ended 31 March 2015 was approximately
HK$22,899,000. As at 31 March 2015, the
audited consolidated shareholders’ deficit of Long
Success was approximately HK$29,518,000.
The unaudited consolidated loss attributable
to owners of Long Success for the six months
ended 30 September 2015 was approximately
HK$10,394,000. As at 30 September 2015,
the unaudited consolidated shareholders’
deficit of Long Success was approximately
HK$39,912,000.

Grand Peace is principally engaged in provision
of funeral services, sale of funeral related
products and loan financing business. The
audited consolidated loss attributable to owners
of Grand Peace for the year ended 31 December
2015 was approximately HK$50,508,000. As at
31 December 2015, the audited consolidated
net asset value attributable to owners of Grand
Peace was approximately HK$128,396,000. The
unaudited consolidated loss attributed to owners
of Grand Peace for the six months ended 30 June
2016 was approximately HK$17,277,000. As at 30
June 2016, the unaudited consolidated net asset
value attributable to owners of Grand Peace was
approximately HK$108,890,000.

T RFFR

18. ZBBRBBRAFEFEZH
BEE (&)

(d)

TEEREEREBRAR

BRFIFEXEBERBERE
SoBRZBHBEZ=ZZT—=
FH+-A-HEBRBHE
ERXGRERR_ZT—~E+A
+hBBRE - BEEZ-Z—A
FZA=+—HLFEZA
IREBABLHKEEZEA
&5 18 £922,899,00058 7T » B
—T-REZA=+—8"
B 2 B S R R B A
#4929,518,0008 L H = —
T-RAFENAAB=ZTHINE
AZzBWRERSAEBLHRESE
AR A 65 18 4910,394,000/%8
T-R-_EBE—RHEAA=+
B Bl REFEZEERE
&5 4t #739,912,00058 Tt °

BEXTEREREBEER
BoHEHEREERLE
FREXB - BE-_ZT—HA
F+-—A=+—BHLEFEZ
BEHEEABMLHEEZLE
A &5 18 450,508,000/ 7T °
RZE—RF+=ZRAR="+—
B @2HEE AREKEZET
& & E F1E#%128,396,000
B -BHE_ZT—FH
=tHREANBAZEEZRA
ANERABEZEAERA
#917,277,0008 L - R =&
—RNFANA=TH ®EHES
ANEBHABEZGEEETF
B 49108,890,0007% JT

111




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ao £ B 2 R B

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE—_T—7Ft+-_A=t+—HLFE

18. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS
(Continued)

112

(f

China Financial Leasing Group Limited

Zheng Li is principally engaged in the business
of (i) maintenance and repair of passenger cars;
and (ii) modification, tuning and grooming of the
performance or appearance of passenger cars
and trading of spare parts and accessories. Zheng
Li’s shares were listed on the Stock Exchange on
8 November 2016. The audited consolidated loss
attributable to owners of Zheng Li for the year
ended 31 December 2016 was approximately
HK$3,209,000. As at 31 December 2016, the
audited consolidated net asset value attributable
to owners of Zheng Li was approximately
HK$76,803,000.

King Force is principally engaged in provision
of security of guarding services. The audited
consolidated loss attributable to owners of King
Force for the year ended 31 March 2016 was
approximately HK$55,000. As at 31 March
2016, the audited consolidated net asset
value attributable to owners of King Force was
approximately HK$59,778,000. The unaudited
consolidated profit attributable to owners of King
Force for the six months ended 30 September
2016 was approximately HK$5,612,000. As at 30
September 2016, the unaudited consolidated net
asset value attributable to owners of King Force
was approximately HK$65,341,000.
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18. ZBBRBBRAFEFEZH
BEE (&)

(f)

ENEBRF(FRABERE
NEBER: R RBE
F I RE SN TTERES - S
REBUANEBEZEMHLE
HEBK - ENZBHR-F
—ANFt+—ANBEBZAH
tH-BE_ZTE-RF+=
A=t—BLEFEZENE
BEARHEREREEEBERY
3,209,000 L e ZE— X
Ft-A=1—RH LEh#%A
AEIERECKFABERE
#776,803,000/% T °

BEXTENERHERTER
IRIEER -HE-_T—RE=
A=+—RALtFETERE
BEAEELEZEEEBEY
55,0008 T - R =T — /N F
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EEEEZREEEFEY
59,778,000 L B E - F
—RNEFEARA=ZF+BHIEAEAR
BB AEEREEZ
4R 6% F #95,612,0005 7T °
RZE—XNFLA=+8"
TIEHE A ABIEREEZE
& & E ¥ B 465,341,000/
5T e



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o B S 5 A

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE-_T—7"Ft+-A=t+—HItFE

18. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS
(Continued)

()

REXLot is principally engaged in lottery system
and games development business and distribution
and marketing of lottery products in PRC. The
audited consolidated profit attributable to owners
of REXLot for the year ended 31 December 2015
was approximately HK$150,879,000. As at 31
December 2015, the audited consolidated net
asset value attributable to owners of REXLot was
approximately HK$5,971,157,000. The unaudited
consolidated profit attributable to owners of
REXLot for the six months ended 30 June 2016
was approximately HK$82,159,000. As at 30
June 2016, the unaudited consolidated net asset
value attributable to owners of REXLot was
approximately HK$5,988,798,000.

Yat Sing is principally engaged in provision of
building maintenance and renovation services.
The audited consolidated profit attributable to
owners of Yat Sing for the year ended 30 June
2016 was approximately HK$11,581,000. As
at 30 June 2016, the audited consolidated net
asset value attributable to owners of Yat Sing was
approximately HK$170,229,000. The unaudited
consolidated loss attributable to owners of Yat
Sing for the six months ended 31 December
2016 was approximately HK$141,000. As at 31
December 2016, the unaudited consolidated net
asset value attributable to owners of Yat Sing was
approximately HK$170,088,000.

T RFFR

18. ZBBRBBRAFEFEZH
BEE (&)

(h)

TEEREEREBRAR

HERFELEIERFEREFR
EERGEBPRAZEBRRE
EEMMBRETISHERSE
HeEHzEz—_ZT—HE+=-A
=+—BLEFEZHEREFRE
BEARBLEEZEE T
#9150,879,000 L e A = &
—RAF+=_A=+—8 1
RHRXHE ANEIGKEEZLE
B EEFEL5,971,157,000
BL-BHE_ZT—XNFXA
=T+ HERBRAZERFR
HEBEABGEREEZES &
482,159,000/ 7T - A =
T—XRNEXNAZTH  HFEF
FHEAEABBREERES
& EF{E475,988,798,0007%
5% o

A EFEXEREEFRE
EBHRE B2 —
FRNAZ+THLEFEZAK
BB ANELRKEEZEE R
#911,581,000 L AR =&
—RNENA=1+HB BRE
EAEERERIGEEEF
E#7170,229,0008 L - H =
—E-RE+=A=+—H
EARNBEAZBEKES AEML
RICE A EBEL141,000
BT RZE—RE+ A
=+—H HK#EEAEML
AEERREEEFED
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19. DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS 19. BERFANKIE
2016 2015
—E-XRFE —T—hF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Deposits A 345 155
Prepayments TR RIB - 43
345 198
20. SHARE CAPITAL 20. KA
2016 2015
—E-XRE —T—HF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Authorised: EE

15,000,000,000 ordinary shares of  15,000,000,0000% & % E 18
HK$0.02 each 0.028 T2 E Ak 300,000 300,000

Issued and fully paid: CRITREE:

741,949,882 (2015: 571,949,882)  741,949,882( — T — R4 :
ordinary shares of HK$0.02 each 571,949,882) i & I E 1B
0.02/8 7T 2 B 14,839 11,439

114 China Financial Leasing Group Limited Annual Report 2016



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT'S

ok BV 285 A B

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE-_T—7"Ft+-A=t+—HItFE

20. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued) 20. B (#&)
A summary of the movements in the issued share capital FARAARRAEFHITRAZHHE N
of the Company during the year is as follows: I
Number
of ordinary
shares of
HK$0.02
each Par value
BREE
0.02%B T2
ZREREE H{E
Note HK$’000
b= FHET
At 1 January 2015, R_ZE—hF—HA—Q8-
31 December 2015 and —E—RF+=A
1 January 2016 =+t—B8k
—ET-RF—-H—H 571,949,882 11,439
Issue of shares on placements Bt & B 3 1T A% 15 (@) 170,000,000 3,400
At 31 December 2016 RZE—RF
+=-—RA=+—H 741,949,882 14,839
Note: MIsE -
(a) On 12 May 2016, the Company entered into a placing (a) ANZE—RNFRA+ZH X2

agreement with Kingston Securities Limited (“Kingston”) as
placing agent where Kingston agreed to place on a best
effort basis a maximum of 50,000,000 new shares of the
Company (“Placing Share 1) of HK$0.02 each at HK$0.58 per
Placing Share | to at least six places who were professional
investors according to the definition of The Securities and
Future Ordinance. The intended and actual use of proceeds
from the share placement was for general working capital and
investments. The placing transaction was completed on 24
May 2016 and a total of 50,000,000 shares were issued. The
gross and net proceeds were approximately HK$29,000,000
and HK$28,120,000 respectively. The net placing price was
approximately HK$0.56.

T RFFR

TEEREEREBRAR

AIESALEHBRAR ([£F
L)) (ERRERE)FT—ER
EHmE Bt eFEREEINU
FREERMD 0588 TRERS
50,000,0000% & % ™ {80.02/8 7t 2
RRAFFRG ([BEERMDI) FF
DRRNBHEEAN (BEEERESE (F
EZABFFLRBEKRG)) - BRHE
EMBRBEZBRELERRRAE—
REEBESRBRE-BREXRHER
—E-XERA-TWNBEEREE
# 2 7750,000,0000% A% 17 © BT 15 3¢
I 42 58 ) 58 9 51 £929,000,0007%
7T }228,120,0007 7t - FL & /FE 4
0.56/8 7T °
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20. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Note: (Continued)

116

(@)

(Continued)

On 12 October 2016, the Company entered into a placing
agreement with Supreme China Securities Limited (“Supreme”)
as placing agent where Supreme agreed to place on a best
effort basis a maximum of 120,000,000 new shares of the
Company (“Placing Share 11") of HK$0.02 each at HK$0.29 per
Placing Share Il to at least six places who were professional
investors according to the definition of The Securities and
Future Ordinance. The intended and actual use of proceeds
from the share placement was for general working capital
and investments. The placing transaction was completed on
27 October 2016 and a total of 120,000,000 shares were
issued. The gross and net proceeds were approximately
HK$34,800,000 and HK$33,875,000 respectively. The net
placing price was approximately HK$0.28.

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are:

(i)

(i

(i)

To safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern, so that it continues to provide
returns and benefits for stakeholders;

To support the Group’s stability and growth; and

To provide capital for the purpose of strengthening
the Group’s risk management capability.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages
its capital structure to ensure optimal capital structure
and shareholder returns, taking into consideration the
future capital requirements of the Group and capital
efficiency, prevailing and projected profitability, projected
operating cash flows, projected capital expenditures and
projected strategic investment opportunities. The Group
currently does not adopt any formal dividend policy.

China Financial Leasing Group Limited
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20. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued) 20. B&RA (#)

The Group also balances its overall capital structure
periodically. The Group manages the capital structure
and makes adjustments to it in the light of changes in
economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the
underlying assets. In order to maintain or adjust the
capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount
of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to
shareholders or issue new shares. The Group will also
consider the raise of long-term borrowings as second
resource of capital when investment opportunities arise
and the return of such investments will justify the cost of
debts from the borrowings.

The Group regards total equity as capital, for capital
management purpose. The amount of capital as
at 31 December 2016 amounted to approximately
HK$70,525,000 (2015: HK$39,986,000), in which
the Group considers as optimal having considered
the projected capital expenditures and the projected
strategic investment opportunities.

The Group also endeavours to ensure the steady and
reliable cash flow from the normal business operation.
For both years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015, the
Group did not raise any debts.

The only externally imposed capital requirement is
that for the Group to maintain its listing on the Stock
Exchange it has to have a public float of at least
25% of the shares. The Group received a report from
share registrars on substantial share interests showing
the non-public float and it demonstrated continuing
compliance with the 25% limit throughout the year.

T RFFR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ao £ B 2 R B

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE—_T—7Ft+-_A=t+—HLFE

21. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 21. AXQRUBMRRARKFE

AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE B E
COMPANY
(a) Statement of financial position of the (@) AAFEKEMRREK
Company
2016 2015
—E-RE —ZT—HF
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5 FHExT FETT
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and M - B KRR
equipment 574 775
Investments in subsidiaries KRB QA 2 & E 3,325 426
Available-for-sale financial ~ AJ fft HE B E & &
assets 518 -
4,417 1,201
Current assets REBEE
Financial assets at fair value #EiBEZIZ A FETE
through profit or loss <A E 66,244 33,725
Deposits and prepayments 1% & & 814 18 200 10
Due from subsidiaries JE UK Bt B X B FXIE 105 58
Bank and cash balances RITRIRSER 671 6,441
67,220 40,234
Current liabilities REEE
Accruals fEETE R 360 1,377
Net current assets RBEEZFE 66,860 38,857
NET ASSETS EEFRE 71,277 40,058
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT'S

ok BV 285 A B

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE-_T—7"Ft+-A=t+—HItFE

21. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 21. AXQRUBMRRARKFE
AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE 85 (&)

COMPANY (Continued)

(a) Statement of financial position of the (@) AATHBERRE (F)

Company (Continued)

2016 2015
—E-RF —E—HF
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
b= FHET FHET
Capital and reserves EXREE
Equity attributable to ZAN/NECIE REWN g
owners of the Company
Share capital (LN 20 14,839 11,439
Reserves fFH 21(b) 56,438 28,619
TOTAL EQUITY RS 71,277 40,058
Approved by the Board of Directors on 28 March R-ZE—+tF=ZA=-+ N \BKES
2017 and is signed on its behalf by: FHEFBABUATESARRESE:
Jim Ka Shun Yip Ming
EEE % 5
Executive Director Independent Non-executive Director
HITEF BIIHBITEFE
—TNFER FREHMAEEEBRAR 119




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Aok o BV 285 A B

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE—_T—7Ft+-_A=t+—HLFE

21. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 21. AXQRUBMRRARKFE
AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE 85 (&)

COMPANY (Continued)

(b) Reserve movement of the Company

(b) AAFREEE

Capital Share  Investment
reduction option  revaluation Accumulated
reserve reserve reserve losses Total

RtteE ExHER% ERERE REEGEE  ZNER it

HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR TR TR

Share

premium

HKS'000

TiERL

At 1 January 2015 RZZ-1F-A-H 88,446

Total comprehensive income FR2ENALE
for the year -

19,444 - - U179 62,711

} _ - (34,092) (34,092)

At 31 December 2015and ~ R=E-RF
1 January 2016 tZA=t-Ak
“E-7F-F-H 88,446

Total comprehensive income  ER2EMHEE

19,444 - - (r9.271) 28,619

for the year - - - 633) (36,976) (37,609)
Issue of shares on placements & &5 %17M (3

(note 20a)) (HiEE20(e)) 60,400 - - - - 60,400
Share issue expenses OB (1,805) - - - - (1,806)
Share-based payments LIRS

(note 23) (Hf&F23) - - 6,833 - - 6,833
At 31 December 2016 RZB-AE

+-A=+-8 147,041 19,444 6,833 633 (116247) 56438
22. RESERVES 22, ##E
(a) Group (@) =A%

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and rEERFEBEEBERERE
movements therein are presented in the e B REAM 2 E RS
consolidated statement of profit or loss and FUARGEEREHRFE
other comprehensive income and consolidated Bl

statement of changes in equity.

120 China Financial Leasing Group Limited Annual Report 2016



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o B S 5 A

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE-_T—7"Ft+-A=t+—HItFE

22. RESERVES (Continued) 22. f#fE (&)

(b) Nature and purpose of reserves (b) BEZHEEREN
] Share premium account (i) R 15 )5 18 AR

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman RIERAEHSARDE

Islands, the funds in the share premium AKARIBHREERSE

account of the Company are distributable to AR T AR T

the shareholders of the Company provided R EEEREREE

that immediately following the date on which DKM EE B AR A

the dividend is proposed to be distributed, NEIBEBREENEER

the Company will be in a position to pay EREEBKTIEHZ

off its debts as they fall due in the ordinary B o D@ E IR Al A

course of business. The share premium may BRARZARDIK

also be distributed in the form of fully paid
bonus shares.

(i) Capital reduction reserve (i)  EBEAHE
Capital reduction reserve represents the BEARERFEHEER =
credit arising from the reduction of par T-ZFFHEARQA
value of issued share capital after cancelling 2 BEEEBERERA
the accumulated losses of the Company BERTRAEBEZA
in 2012. The reserve may be utilised by Ro-RBABESRIE
the directors as a distributable reserve in NN =
accordance with the articles of association EKmBRBERBZEMBE
of the Company and all applicable laws. AT IR G-

(i) Share option reserve (i)  FEREFE
The share option reserve represents the fair BRERABREE TR
value of the actual or estimated number SEESF REEKREM
of unexercised share options granted to ZEMAITEERESR
directors, employees and consultants of the R EEHEB 2 F
Group recognised in accordance with the B REGFEHBRE
accounting policy adopted for equity-settled B 4 (n) AT 8 BLAE = 45
share-based payments in note 4(n) to the B E BT
consolidated financial statements. Mz BT BRER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ao £ B 2 R B

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE—_T—7Ft+-_A=t+—HLFE

22.

23.

122

RESERVES (Continued)

(b) Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)
(iv)  Investment revaluation reserve

The investment revaluation reserve
comprises the cumulative net change in
the fair value of available-for-sale financial
assets held at the end of the reporting
period and is dealt with in accordance with
the accounting policy in note 4(f)(iii) to the
consolidated financial statements.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

Equity-settled share option scheme

The Company operates a share option scheme (the
“Scheme”) for the purpose of providing incentives and
rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the
success of the Group’s operations. Eligible participants
include the full-time and part-time employees,
executives, officers, directors, business consultants,
suppliers, customers, legal and financial advisers of the
Company and the Company’s subsidiaries. The Scheme
became effective on 12 January 2012 and, unless
otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain in force for
10 years from that date.

The maximum number of unexercised share options
currently permitted to be granted under the Scheme
is an amount equivalent, upon their exercise, to 10%
of the shares of the Company in issue at any time.
The maximum number of shares issuable under share
options to each eligible participant in the Scheme within
any 12-month period is limited to 1% of the shares of
the Company in issue at any time. Any further grant
of shares options in excess of this limit is subject to
shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

China Financial Leasing Group Limited Annual Report 2016
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23.

f#fE (8])
(b) REZHEERBEMH (E)
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& A B2 HE RS M ZE M #
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o B S 5 A

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE-_T—7"Ft+-A=t+—HItFE

23.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)
Equity-settled share option scheme (Continued)

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of
their associates, are subject to approval in advance by
the independent non-executive directors. In addition, any
share options granted to a substantial shareholder or
an independent non-executive director of the Company,
or to any of their associates, in excess of 0.1% of the
shares of the Company in issue at any time or with an
aggregate value (based on the price of the Company’s
shares at the date of the grant) in excess of HK$5
million, within any 12-month period, are subject to
shareholders’ approval in advance in a general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted
within 21 days from the date of the offer, upon
payment of a nominal consideration of HK$1 in total
by the grantee. The exercise period of the share
options granted is determinable by the directors, and
commences after a certain vesting period and ends on
a date which is not later than five years from the date of
the offer of the share options or the expiry date of the
Scheme, if earlier.

The exercise price of the share options is determinable
by the directors, but may not be less than the highest of
(i) the Stock Exchange closing price of the Company’s
shares on the date of the offer of the share options;
(i) the average Stock Exchange closing price of the
Company’s shares for the five trading days immediately
preceding the date of the offer; and (iii) the nominal value
of the Company’s shares on the date of the offer, when
applicable.

T RFFR

23.

ROERESR (FE)
BREEBRESTSE (&)
BRYARABES TETHABSK
FTERHEABEETMBBEA LT 2B
WEBAELEBIYIERTESR
BERAEE - W BTFARRQAE
ERRABIIERTEFH S
M8 ALT 2 ERERE WRE
] 121E A HA & 8 8 1 {a) B f 2% 17
ZARRAFRMD0A%K EE (FHAR
AIRMAEL BRERTE)BR
5,000,000 7T - BIZEE £ R R K
SRR E FAIEE -

AREARAZINEZERES KX 1E
TTRBEHNBEHE2IERN B
HEREZ 2D -EBREZTT
FHAREFEET IRE—FE
HREFT MR T ERBEREZOR
MR AF 2z BHskxstalEin A Y
(ABRBERE)ER -

BRETEENRESFETE ED
SEROARFRONBREZL
B 2B mE: (A2 AR
MERBHEHAAERZH 2F
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Aok o BV 285 A B

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE—_T—7Ft+-_A=t+—HLFE

23. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)

Equity-settled share option scheme (Continued)

23. BROPERIRK (F)
A S R ST Y ()

124

Share options do not confer rights on the holder to

dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.
Details of the share options are as follows:

Date of grant

Vesting period

RN A TR A AU B K
ERRARGLEREZEN-

AR EREISI T

Exercise period Exercise price

®E B BEH THEH TEE
HK$
AT
2016 12 July 2016 12 July 2016 — 0.40
11 July 2019
—ZE-RF —E—RF N5 —E-RF 0.40
+HA+=H +tA+=ZA=E
—E-NF
+H+—H

If the share options remain unexercised after a period
of 3 years from the date of grant, the options expire.
Options are forfeited if the employee leaves the Group.

China Financial Leasing Group Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o B S 5 A

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE-_T—7"Ft+-A=t+—HItFE

23. BROPERIRK (F)
MR A E R B ()
FRHRITRBREFENT

23. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)
Equity-settled share option scheme (Continued)
Details of the share options outstanding during the year
are as follows:

Number of Number of Number of
share options  share options  share options
Name and held as at granted held as at
category of 1 January during the 31 December Exercise
grantees Date of grant 2016 year 2016 price  Exercise period
R=B-R¥ RZB-R¥
EBALER -fA-H FRRE t=A=t-H
K& R AH FEBREHE BREHE FAEBREHE TEE T&EH
HK$
BT
Director
Bz
Mr. Jim Ka Shun 12 July 2016 - 5,700,000 5,700,000 0.40 12 July 2016 -
11 July 2019
ERERE —E-RE 2
tA+=H tA+zZHZE
—E-NE
tA+—-H
Employees 12 July 2016 - 20,000,000 20,000,000 0.40 12 July 2016 -
11 July 2019
3 “E-REtA —E-RE
+-H tATZRZE
“ENE
tA+t-H
Consultants 12 July 2016 - 8,600,000 8,600,000 0.40 12 July 2016 -
11 July 2019
B —E-RF —E-RF
tA+Z=H tATZBE
—T-NEF
tA+-A
- 34,300,000 34,300,000
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ao £ B 2 R B

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE—_T—7Ft+-_A=t+—HLFE

23. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued) 23. R{#ZEMRN (&)

126

Equity-settled share option scheme (Continued) EEEEBRETS (F)
Details of the movement of share options during the year FABREZESFBEOT :

are as follows:

2016 2015
“E2-RE —T-h%F
Weighted Weighted
Number average average
of share exercise Number of exercise
options price share options price
mEFH INFEF
BREYE fTEE BEREHE I E
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Outstanding at the beginning FENHAKITE
of the year - - -
Granted during the year FRKH 34,300,000 0.40 -
Outstanding at the end FREAITHE
of the year 34,300,000 0.40 -
Exercisable at the end ERAFIE
of the year 34,300,000 0.40 -
The share options outstanding at the end of the year FRERITEBREFGKEHF
have a remaining contractual life of 2.53 years and the Hi /2. 535 R 1T (B R0.40/8 7T °
exercise price of HK$0.40. The share options were BEREARZE—AFEtA+ZBE
granted on 12 July 2016 and the estimated fair value - mMRZB cBREMKT A TE
of the share options on this date was approximately #96,833,000/8 7T °

HK$6,833,000.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o B S 5 A

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE-_T—7"Ft+-A=t+—HItFE

23. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued) 23. KR{#ZEMRN (&)

Equity-settled share option scheme (Continued) EEEEBRETS (F)
The fair value was calculated using the binomial option AFENA-ZEXAREETEER
pricing model. The inputs into the model were as follows: FE-BRAZHASENT:

Director and
employees Consultants

EEREE B2
Share price I B HK$0.36 HK$0.36
0.3678 7T 0.368 7T
Exercise price 118 HK$0.40 HK$0.40
0.40/& 7T 0.40/8 7T
Risk free rate 4 5, b 1| R 0.578% 0.578%
Contractual life BHIFH 2.997 years  2.997 years
2.9974 2.997 4
Expected volatility T8 B R 1R 110.498% 110.498%
Expected dividend yield TEHARR Bl R 0% 0%
Early exercise multiple RETEREH 3.660 2.582
Exit rate R = 11.111% 0%
Expected volatility was determined by calculating the TEHR RS B BESF 2 AR AR
historical volatility of the Company’s share price over the BERELFEBET FTHEEZAS
previous 3 years. The calculation had been adjusted, XEMBE AR EZE M 17 R
based on the Group’s best estimate, for the effects of RITREEZZEMBARE-
non-transferability, exercise restrictions and behavioural
considerations.
Share options granted to consultants were incentives for BETEEOBEREDREBDAE
helping the Group expand its business network, acquire BERAZEBEG KWERSHFE
and explore new business projects and opportunities. BEEBM#ENRE ARTERD
The fair value of such benefit could not be estimated N ETEA EAE Bt AR
reliably and as a result, the fair value is measured by FELDZERREERENATE
reference to the fair value of share options granted. e
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
HEZT—RF+A=t+—HILFE

24. ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY 24,

On 17 March 2016, the Group acquired 100% of
the issued share capital of Colour Charm at a cash
consideration of HK$2,900,000. Colour Charm did not
generate any revenue since its date of incorporation on
2 January 2015. The acquisition of Colour Charm did
not constitute a business combination. The acquisition
is for the purpose of acquiring the property, plant and
equipment.

The purchase consideration was allocated to the
identifiable assets of Colour Charm acquired as at its
date of acquisition as follows:

W B8 — R B B 2 |
R-ZE—XRNFZA+tHB K&H
A IR 4 K 182,900,000 7T U B8 %
BB TRA-KEBHRZ
T-hAF—A= Eafﬂﬁﬁiaﬁﬂﬁ_
I EAEE A B EN
BREBE G- E%Hﬁzﬁﬁ%lﬁaﬁuﬁz
BB WBEREE-

RWEAMOSRETFTERBYEZ
HAEENBERELT:

Net assets acquired: EWBEESRE: HK$’000
FTHET
Property, plant and equipment Y- WE&EE 2,900
Net assets BEFE 2,900
Total consideration, satisfied by: BRE HATHKIZAA:
Cash Re 2,900
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition: WHEIREE RS M T
Cash consideration paid ENRERE (2,900)
25. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 25. HAREE
As at 31 December 2016, the Group did not have any RZE-—RF+ZA=+—H 'K
significant contingent liabilities (2015: Nil). EETEEMNERAIAREGE(ZF
—hFE) -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o B S 5 A

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE-_T—7"Ft+-A=t+—HItFE

26.

27.

LEASE COMMITMENTS 26. HEFKIE
At 31 December 2016 the total future minimum lease RZFE-—XRF+ZA=+—80"F
payments under non-cancellable operating leases are AEEEEHET A ERRKER
payable as follows: MEFRBEBATFTEZFHOT:
2016 2015
ZE-RF —T—IOF
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FA&7T
Within one year —F A 516 516
In the second to fifth years F_EFLF
inclusive (BREREEMTF) 215 731
731 1,247
Operating lease payments represented rentals payable REMEFERANEEEN Z M D
by the Group for its office. Lease is negotiated for a term =He - HEHEFHR/IF MM
of 3 years and rental is fixed over the lease term and RN HEERFEBEEAETBREXAMR
does not include contingent rentals. o
RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 27. BERRS
Compensation of key management personnel FEEHBAEBZHE

The key management personnel of the Company
comprises all employees and directors, details of their
remuneration are disclosed in notes 11 and 12(a) to the
consolidated financial statements.

T RFFR

KRBT EEEABREMEREE
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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
TR B 2

A summary of the published results and of the assets and 8B & EZ U B WK 2 &7 A E K F
liabilities of the Group for last five financial years, as extracted EZARNEBEMAMEEUREERBEREZ
from the audited financial statements, is set out below. BIZHEHN FX - B EW THEXLEZTH
The summary does not form part of the audited financial % 2 &617 °

statements.

2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
“E2-X"§ —T-nf —T-mME T _T-_f
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAR TAT TET TET FTET

RESULTS £
Revenue WA 1 1 4 23 223
Loss before tax BRI RIE B (37,656) (34,148) (34,874) (9,863) (22,862)
Income tax expense ETRHAX - - - - -

Loss for the year attributable 2722 @ %A A
to owners of the Company  EIEFEE1E (37,656) (34,148) (34,874) (9,863) (22,862)

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE

Non-current assets ERBEE 3,572 1,037 613 214 4,311
Current assets REYEE 67,340 40,364 73,845 43,209 49,041
Current liabilities nEafE (387) (1,415) (324) (370) (436)

Net assets attributable to RN FHEE A
owners of the Company EIEEEFE 70,525 39,986 74,134 43,053 52,916
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